Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact

A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, February 13, 2018
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Jennifer St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City, M1 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 02-09-18



Light and Power Board 2 February 13, 2018
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Disclosure of Recusal

3. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedife business by grouping non-controversial items
fogether to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed firom the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting and Study Session of January
23, 2018. (Approval recommended) (p. 4)

b. Consideration of MECA Safety Training contract renewal. (Approval recommended)
(Dixon) (p. 7)

B Consideration of authorizing a Construction Agreement with Newkirk Electric
Associates, Inc. for the Barlow Substation Transformer Replacement Project. (Approval
recommended) (Dixon) (p. 12)

d. Consideration of approving an agreement with Energis Power Systems for substation
transformer maintenance. (Approval recommended) (Dixon) (p. 14)

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.
4. Unfinished Business
a. Consideration of the Heritage Option regarding additional solar. (Arends) (p. 16)

5. New Business

a. Consideration of the Fiber to the Premise Project Authorization Request and authorizing
staff to seek competitive bids. (Menhart/Arends) (p. 20)

b. Consideration of a Fiber to the Premise Business Plan. (Menhart/Arends) (p. 48)

c. Consideration of the Substation Circuit Exits Project Authorization Request and
authorizing staff to seek competitive bids. (Dixon) (p. 49)

d. Consideration of authorizing a consultant agreement with GRP Engineering, Inc. for
engineering and construction management services for the Substation Circuit Exits
Project. (Dixon) (p. 52)



Light and Power Board 3 February 13, 2018
Regular Meeting

€. Consideration of the Parsons Switching Station Project Authorization Request and
authorizing staff to seek competitive bids. (Dixon) (p. 58)

f. Consideration of authorizing a Consultant Agreement with GRP Engineering, Inc. for
engineering, construction management, and testing services for the Parsons Switching
Project. (Dixon) (p. 61)

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Presentation of 2018-19 Fiber Fund Budget. (Myers-Beman) (p. 63)
2. Annual Report. (Myers-Beman/Schroeder) (p. 66)
3. Quarterly Financial Statements. (Myers-Beman) (p. 77)

C. From Board.

1. Consideration of calling a Special Meeting on 2/27/18 to consider the Spartan
Renewable Energy offer.

7. Public Comment

s




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, January 23, 2018

Board Members -
Present: Jan Geht, Ross Hammersley, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe,
John Taylor, Tim Werner :
Absent:
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Marty Colburn, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Doren. N,ff Jocks, Karla Myers-Beman, Scott

Menbhart, Daren Dixon, Kélli:Schroeder, Jaco ‘Hardy, Tony Chartrand

Items Removed from thi

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

None.

Item 5 on the Agenda being New Business

None.



January 23, 2018
Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
1. Discussion of an attorney-client privileged written document.
The following individuals addressed the Board:
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Taylor, that the Board enter into closed session to discuss an
attorney-client privileged written document.

Roll Call:
Yes — Hammersley, McGuire, Shamroe, Taylor, Werner

CARRIED unanimously.

5:20 the Board entered into closed session.
5:32 the Board returned from closed session.

b. From Staff.
C. From Board

Ttem 7 on the Agenda bc;,',

4. General

thé'meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Study Session
Traverse City Light and Power Board
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, January 23, 2018

LIGHT AND POWER BOARD MEMBERS -

Present: Jan Geht, Ross Hammersley, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy
Shamroe, Tim Werner, John Taylor

Absent:
EX OFFICIO MEMBER -
Present: Marty Colburn, City Ma
OTHERS: Tim Arends, Jeff Jot (%ks /Scott Menbhart, Kalla\Myels Beman,
acob Hardy

Daren Dixon, Kelli chr eder, Tony Chamand,J
L

Amy Shait
John Tay

Russell Schindle 1123 W. Front Street, rate-payer

Megan C1anda\1; 417 W. Twelfth Street, rate-payer

Brian McGillivary, 332 Huron, rate-payer

Bruce Moore, President, Michigan Broadband Services, non- rate-payer

There being no objection, Chairman Geht declared the meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary
lis LIGHT AND POWER BOARD



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manager @
Date: January 31, 2018

Subject: MECA Safety Training Contract Renewal

Michigan Electric Co-operative Association (MECA) has provided safety-related training to all
employees of TCL&P for several years. The attached contract with MECA for Safety Training
automatically renewed for an additional three (3) year term on January 1, 2018, for a fixed
$28,235/year; however, Board approval is required for the renewal. The MECA contract provides
the following invaluable services:

o Onsite safety training required by OSHA and MIOSHA

o Onsite safety training that is required by TCL&P policy

e Annual Offsite line school training (2 seats — 4 workshop trainings)

e Annual Safety Coordinator workshops.

e Training delivered includes procurement or development of all training materials

e Mutual Aid coordination and availability of a local safety representative during major
outages

o Information for the internal development of emergency action plans, safety policies and
procedures, and job hazard assessments

e Sharing of incidents, statistics, and lessons learned/best practices from around the
industry.

e Assistance with accident/incident investigations

It is staff’s recommendation to approve the funding of the contract renewal, as the utility is not
staffed to provide the items listed above internally.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the
following motion is recommended:

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13,2018

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY y

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO
A THREE YEAR AGREEMENT WITH MECA FOR ITS SAFETY TRAINING
PROGRAM FROM JANUARY 1,2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020.




Michigan Electric Cooperative Association

SAFETY PROGRAM AGREEMENT

The undersigned municipal utility (“Utility")
hereby subscribes to participate in the Employee
Safety Program described below (the “Program”) and
provided by the Michigan Electric Cooperative
Association (“MECA”).

The Utility and MECA hereby agree as
follows:

1; The Program.

MECA shall provide the Program services to
the Utility as more particularly set forth on Exhibit
“A" attached to this Agreement and incorporated
herein by reference.

The Program will be provided at a time
scheduled by MECA in a single location within the
Utility’s service tetritory or in reasonably close
proximity. MECA provides the Program services to
multiple utilities and, for efficiency, reserves the right
to combine the Ulility’s Program services with other
utilities’ participation at a more central location,

8 Term,

The initial term of this Agreement is three
(3) years beginning January 1, 2012. The Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew for successive
three (3) year renewal terms unless either party
provides written notice of non-rencwal to the other
party not less than six (6) months prior to the
expiration of the initial term or any renewal term,
MECA may change the fees for the Program services
for any subsequent renewal term by providing written
notice to the Utility not less than eight (8) months
prior to the expiration of the then-current term of this
Agreement,

The Agreement may be earlicr terminated by
either party at any time (i) upon a default of the other
parly after wrilten notice of the default and failure to
cure the default within 30 days after receipt of the
notice; or (ii) MECA ceasing to provide the Program
services.

Upon an early terminatidn based upbn
MECA ceasing to pravide the Program, all pre-paid

Program services shall be provided or the annual
payment shall be refunded to the Utility.

3. Fees.

The annual fee for the Program shall be
$20,000, payable in advance to MECA by December
1 of each preceding calendar year during the term of
this Agreement, The annual fee is subject to change
for each renewal term by written notice to the Utilily
as provided in Section 2,

4, Liability.

The Utility remains responsible for its
compliance with all applicable safety requirements
and recommendations. Nothing in this Agreement or
in the provision of the Program services to the Utility
and its employees shall cause MECA to assume any
responsibility or any liability to any third party or to
the Utility or its employees for the Utility’s
compliance with any applicable federal, state, local or
industry standards or requirements,

The Utility hereby agrees to indemnify and
hold MECA, and its directors, members, employees,
contractors and agents, harmless from and against
any claims made against MECA for any injury, death
or damages, including all costs of defense against any
such claim, arising out of or made in connection with
the Utility’s or its employees’ failure to properly
comply with any applicable safety standard or
requirement,

Neither party shall be liable to the other
party for any indirect, incidental or consequential
damages related to either party’s performance or non-
performance of their obligations under this
Agreement,

- Assignment,

This Agrecment shall be binding upon the
parties hereto and their respective successors and
permitted assigns; provided, however, that this
Agreement may not be assigned by the Utility to any




unaffiliated person without the prior wrilten consent
of MECA.

6. Notices.

Any notice required or permitted to be given
under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the
addresses set forth below, Notice shall be deemed to
be given upon mailing.

T No Agency.

By entering into this Agreement and
petforming its obligations hereunder, MECA is
acting solcly as an independent contractor and shall
not be, and shall not be deemed to be, an agent of the
Utility for any purpose.

8. Entire Agreement,
R
This Agreement contains the entire

agreement of the partics with respect to the provision

of the Program services and supersedes all prior

correspondence, conversations and negotiations with
respect thercto, Except as otherwise provided herein,

this Agreement may be changed or otherwise

modificd only in writing and signed by both parties

herefo. .
9. Governing Lavy.

This Agreement shall be governed by and

interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Michigan,

The undersigned parlies have caused this Agrecment to be executed by their duly authorized officers or
representatives as of the date accepted and executed by MECA below.,

LANOIN236627.4
IDAWIP - 025166/0999

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWE

2 Zi’éwwtd[ T Mo

Executive Director

Its:

Address: 1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, ML 49686

Acccptcdgg’ 6 gé V(",, 2011

IC QOOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION

MICHTIGAN ELEC'A

By:

iddht and CEO \_

Addrgss: 2859/, Jolly Road
emos, MI 48864

10



1 € sn|d 'siveddied 1uswbas

odue}sissy pue 3ioddng (£4Y) J9piAcig Jamod dijgnd 3[qelsy |

, uoISSNISI(] PUE MIIADY SSIN-1ED) pPUR JUSPIIZY -« |
m_ uonebsaau] JUIPIY -
_m poddns piy jeniny -

sebejueapy juedidijied penuiuo) .

i
diysyaop siojeulpaoo) A183e8 - —

(@) Iuedpieg [RUORIPPY 134 150D

dousyioM MesuIzy) - w FLOZ -TLOT
: i
sjuedpiied I doysyiop (DSIN) 2pod A19)es 2130913 jruohey - : HISS T
doys3}ioM |eUCRIPPY - _ doysyjiofp uonebisaau] WSpIdY -« !
(agL) 1.y AunoH _" :3pnjous soidol doysyicn siuedpiled ..
L wesBoid A3jes :aui0 Yum Apuiof piey 89 CLPRUIWISISP 3G 01 swuedpiued jeuciippe _ i ‘A assonei]
SUonBAlRSqQ M24) = 104 Bupp4 1eak Jod doysyiom 1ad saako|duws Aljan (7) oml 01 dn Joj S3uepuany ﬁ
i sdoysyic )2 mod s
(agL) 12y AUnoH ; ysyjiom A3yes () anod W
I _“
puiuresy ¥pojg - | "SI 118D B| B UOIIBAJRSTQ) M31D) 40 Bujulel] Y20|g JO JIGUINU jenba Jo) paInuisgns ;
' 3q ued sbusaw (7) om1 03 ¢ sweiboid 3|gejieae jo 151 pancidde Ue Wol pa1o3|3s
2s3nbs! Uodn 2/qe|ieAe ‘SWal h aq o1 2oy ‘uopeac) 1soy paleulisap 12 paiaA)ep aq 01 sBunIaW Asges | : 000°0TS IUALLISIAU] Weibold jenuuy
3}0e3 8] @ BUIMO|jo) 3U SPAPUL LON | sBunaayy f1eges jeuonipeil (g) b3 » 4731 K3 esieneil

$30Q WNCWR 1UsUIsaAU| AleLes [enuuy _

YRR E e TR AT e vy b [rapuctasl o O 60 o
eﬁ.e.m.ﬁ.,..”!,\_,ﬂ.m AL ,.r..UM (vl i s T
/)

TR
il b D LW E

£
23]

s W

$321M3S Welboid A1ares 2a/ojdwi3 Jo uondudsaq
o~ LIGIHX3

11



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board ——

From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manag(@—

Date: February 5, 2018

Subject: Barlow Substation Transformer Replacements — Construction Agreement

At the May 9, 2017 Regular Board Meeting, staff presented and the Board approved the 69/13.8kv
Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer Upgrades Project Authorization Request (Project). This Project is
being undertaken to replace and upgrade the aged transformers currently in use at the Barlow
Substation.  Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the installation of these two
transformers and bids were received as follows:

Vendor Price

Kent Power, Inc. $ 230,161
Newkirk Electric Associates, Inc.  $ 164,267
Rauhorn Electric, Inc. $ 236,905
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. $ 120,609

Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. did not attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting stipulated in the
RFP, their bid is considered disqualified. Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) has previously
conducted business with the low bidder, Newkirk Electric Associates, Inc., and is recommending
TCL&P accept their bid and enter into a construction agreement. The recommended bid is higher
than was anticipated from the estimated breakdown; however, it still fits within the overall budget.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on
the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the
following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT FOR THE BARLOW SUBSTATION
TRANSFORMER INSTALLATION WITH NEWKIRK ELECTRIC ASSOCIATES, INC.
IN THE AMOUNT OF $164,267; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

12



J98u18ul] walsAs ‘puetpeyd Auo)

\&\\\ .

J1amod 3 W3 Al ssisaeal

"peas pue pauado Apignd aiam ulalay palejngel spiq 2yl ‘KT0Z ‘s Alenigad ‘Aepuoin Uo awil [ea0] ‘AId00:Z 18 eyl Ajiluad 03 st siyL

00609021 S %0T eFE8E NL Ipjoquiny
, ‘paijijenbsip SNUBAY Y16 "N 6%7ST

si piq ‘uilsawl pig-s4d Alojepuew 3yl pusiie 10U pia *Ju] ‘Sunnidejnue uasneyulay
00°S06'9¢€C ) %0T Zv08Y IN ‘quodeiN

PeOY 3IN ET TLTLT
"2u| O1399]3 uloyney

p1g mo7 00°L92V9T S %0T Zv6Y LN ‘uo3aysnin
192415 S1IRqQOY SL8T
*2U[ ‘$31RI120SSY JUI29[F J4DMaN

00'19T0€T S %0T 0EE6Y 1IN “AtD Uy

19315 3ulds 06

*JU] “UamOod Uy
. AJ1dd aig 3svg : e

SHIVINGY  MOIIVHIN OU,,,.E 101 ALl¥n23s al mmnn:m

uone|jelsu| JOWLIOSURLL UOIIRISGNS Mojieg  :dwep 1dafold

wio4 uoie|nge] pig
Jamod 13 1yS A1 assanes)

HIMOd ¥ LHOIT

Alld 3s¥3aIAvYAL

13




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manager s ——>—"

Date: January 31, 2018

Subject: Substation Transformer Maintenance — Construction Agreement

Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a third party vendor to provide all labor necessary
for the maintenance and testing of Hall Street, Parsons and Cass Road substation transformers. All
maintenance and inspections are to be completed by June 30, 2018. Bids were received as follows:

Vendor Price
Delta Star $ 109,750.00
Electric Power Systems $ 172,580.00
Energis Power Systems $ 109,252.28
Newkirk Electric Associates $ 134,500.00
Premier Power Maintenance $ 151,130.00
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Co. $ 240,302.36
Vertiv Group Corporation $ 21,930.00

Vertiv Group Corporation did not provide the bid bond required and did not bid on all maintenance
and inspections requested in the RFP, their bid is considered incomplete. Traverse City Light &
Power (TCL&P) has previously conducted business with the low bidder, Energis Power Systems,
and is recommending TCL&P accept their bid and enter into a construction agreement.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on
the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the
following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT FOR SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER
MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTIONS WITH ENERGIS POWER SYSTEMS IN THE
AMOUNT OF $109,252.28, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

14



123ul8u3] WIsAS ‘pueipey) Auo)

g. n\'m

Jamod 73 38 Ay asianes)

*peal pue pausdo Apignd asem uiaiay paiengel spiq a4yl ‘8T0Z ‘0€ Aenuer ‘Aepsan] uo sawn [e20] “NId00-T 38 18yl ALiLI9D 01 sI Siy )L

pig 313)dwoouy 000€6'TC S SUON Z80EY HO “@|121saM
: aAlQg sndwe?) aAnIsx3 0T9
uonetodio) dnoig muap

9€°20€0rZ ) %0T S£HERE NI ‘IPjoqunH
SNUBAY Y16 "N 617S¢
*0D) ‘SUINIDBINUBIN UISNEYUIDY

000ETIST S %0T 9TT8Y IN ‘uolysug
peoy uojsuisua)| z9ZL
20UBURIUIR JOMO JBIWAIY

00°00SVET S %0T ZhP6Y IIN ‘Uo3jsniy
199,15 SHAqOY S/8T
$33.120SSY 2143293 NARjMmaN

pig moq 87°7ST'60T S %0T YOEYS IM “Aeg usau
peoy A10[9 T9ET
sa2inosay ageyjon YSiH siSiaul
00°08S'TLT S %01 E6T]Y IN ‘Marnianly
188415 HOps3uoT] T98TT
SWIasAS Jamod d1309]3
00°0S£'60T S %0T TOSHZ YA ‘S4ngyouil
InQ Jamophey 0SSE
Je3s eyed

Diudaiaasva
HOLOVHINOD TVIOL

SluVINIY Amm3sag | w3aaie

20UBUIUIBIA JULIOJSURL] uolelsgnS  :awep 18fold

wJaog uonengey pig S L L
1amod g WS Ay asianel) HIMOL ¥ LHOI'T

15




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 20138

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 5, 2018

Subject: Heritage Option

At the November 28, 2017 board meecting, Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC’s (“Heritage™)
expansion letter was introduced to the Board. The letter provides notice Heritage would like to
provide additional solar energy in an amount of 2.25 MW in accordance with the Amended and
Restated Power Purchase Agreement (“Agreement™) dated August 16, 2017. Construction is
planned to commence in the spring of 2018 subject to zoning approval from Elmwood Township.

In accordance with the Agreement, the utility has two options. (1) The utility, within sixty days
of the receipt of the expansion notice, has the option to elect to purchase all, and not less than all,
of the additional solar energy generated at a price of $99.50/MWh. (2) If the utility does not
exercise this option, the utility will purchase the additional solar energy at the LMP Real-Time
hourly rate at the Cons.TC Node not including capacity or renewable energy credits.

In addition to the option, Heritage has agreed to donate a 2% royalty interest in the project to the
Father Fred Foundation with the proceeds therefrom to be utilized to help pay electric bills for
Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) customers who are in need of such help. In addition, they
have provided the option to reserve an additional 250 kW of solar panels that could be utilized for
community solar on terms and conditions yet to be negotiated.

This information was provided to the City’s Green Team along with the other renewable energy
offers presented at the November 2017 board meeting. They have responded at this time they are
interested in pursuing other renewable cnergy offers that would not require a rate subsidy paid by
the city. TCL&P staff also provided an update on renewable energy including information on this
proposal at the January 8, 2018 City Commission Study Session and at this time there appears no
interest by City staff to move forward with this option.

Based on the avoided cost of solar currently estimated at $80.00/MWh if the option were to be
executed for a fixed price of $99.50/MWh, this renewable energy would be a premium cost to the
utility of approximately $49,000 per year averaged over the 20-year term of the agreement.
Initially, this agreement is estimated to affect the projected wholesale price of electricity in 2018-
19 by an increase of $.30 per MWh. (This would impact an average residential household annual
costs by $1.80 and an average large industrial by $900.)

16



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

If the Board would like to move forward and exercise the option provided by Heritage consisting
of purchasing an additional 2.25MW for $.0995 per kWh the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY x

THAT STAFF EXERCISES THE OPTION DATED NOVEMBER 2, 2017 ALLOWED BY
THE AMENDED AND RESTATED PURCHASE POWER AGREEMENT DATED
AUGUST 16,2017 FOR THE UTILITY TO PURCHASE 2.25 MW OF SOLAR

ENERGY AT A FIXED PRICE OF §.0995 PER KWH.

17




5 .'5f%p:iif§3 #nergy

November 2, 2017

Mr. Tim Arencls

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Streot
Traverse City, Ml 49686

Dear Mr. Arends:

| am writing to you regarding the Amended and Restated Power Purchase Agreement dated
August 16, 2017 by and between TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT
(“TCLP"), a Michigan municipal electric utility, (‘Buyer”) and HERITAGE SUSTAINABLI:
ENERGY, I.LC (“Heritage”), a Michigan limited liability company (“Supplier”), (‘the Agreement”).

Specifically, pursuant to Section 6,2.2 of the Agreement, Supplier would like to supply Additional
Solar Energy in-an amotint of 2,256 MW (o be constructed in the spring of 2018. This lelter will
therefore serve as the Expansion Notice as set forth in the Agresment.

Algo, as we discussed in ourrecent telephone conversation, Heritage will be making the
following donation: we will donate a 2% royalty interest in the project to the Father Fred
Foundation with the proceeds therefrom to be utilized to help pay electric bills for TCLP
customers who are in need of such help. The 2% royalty would be for the entire 20 year term of
the purchase contract with TCLP. TCLP would simply pay the Father Fred Foundation 2% of
the value of the electricity generated-from the 2,25 MW array and Heritage would receive 98%.
Herltage prides itself on being a-good corporate cilizen of Traverse City, and an behalf of itself
and its employees; is happy to be able to help in this regard.

Finally, again per our conversation, we will be reserving space for an additional 250 kW of solar
panels. This space could be utilized for community solar on terms and conditions to he
negotiated between TCLP, Heritage and the community. My understanding is that there is
inlerest in the community for such a project, and we would he gratified to be part of making that
happen.

Please let me kriow at your eatliest convenience:whether TCLP will be exercising its-option to

purchase the Additional Solar Energy.
a0

Ma{lin CI’Lagma )

President and CEQ, Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC

10

18




|svsoe'sy ¢ a3esony|
89'89€'6/6 $ 66'02S'V88'E
(8s'960'7) S (6000°0) $ Te'vss’ser $  t00TO S
LETOL $ €000°0 $ PL0S2'TET S TE60°0 S
TO'650°L $ 08000 S TLYI'LTT  §  S960°0 S
SS'900'€ET $  S§S00°0 $ B89'€6T'TZZ § 0OV6O0 S
TO9LL8T 6000 $ €9°90L°41Z S 9T600 S
08'80F'€Z $ 86000 S 0TT9TYIZ $§ L6800 S
88°/08'8C § 0ZIOO S S¥/S00TZ S S/80°0 S
£€9°097'vE S TYIOO $ €0°908°S0T  § €S80°0 S
[86L60F S 69100 $ PT'Z6Z'00Z $§ 92800 S
98°650'9% S 63100 S 8S'VZY'96T S 90800 S
S9VZE'TS S TITO0 $ 0€'8LL'TET S £8L0°0 S
€7'9T9'9S  $§ 0E£Z00 $ 9T'TIE88T S S9/00 S
70'T6S'Z9 S €ST00 § SEL9S'€8T $§ TPLOO S
88'7/8'89 $§ LLZOO $ 8v'7es8LT S 8TL00 S
LOLOY'EL S ¥6T00 S S8PTLISLT § T0L00 S
69'LVE9. § F¥0E00 S OEOVS'€LT  § 16900 S
89'9€S'Z8  $ LZEOO $ E£07Z09°89T S 89900 S
89'7TET6 $ 09800 S 90°€80°T9T § SE90°0 $
PP ESYTOT  § TOPOO S L9PBI'IST § €650°0 $
LLSETZOT S 66E00 $ BOETLZTST § 96500 $
siefjod Y| 1ad 3500 1B 33 $J3Y

ul wniwaad B Se wniwald HO peseydind J0

J1 53500 uoisnjou] oYM

pajewnsy uny wiaL Hoys

£9°688'€98'Y S

Jo1e4 Ajoede) % €T uo paseg

ST ETE €8RSy lelol
7E'88LTET S660°0 S TESBTET 8€0T 0z
TT'€S6°TET §660°0 S LETIPET LEOT 6T
ELETTPET §660°0 $ T00'eseC 9€0Z 8T
€2'00£SET S660°0 S 9T8Y9ET G£0T LT
#9'Z8Y'9gT S660'0 S OTL9LE'T E02 91
00'TL9LET S660°0 S €59'88E'C £€0T ST
7£'598°8¢€¢ $660°0 $ £59'00%'C ZE0T T
§9'590°01Z S660°0 S 0TLTIVT 10T €T
T0°2LT'THT S660°0 S YT 0£0T 4
SV Y8y T S660°0 S 6T0LEVT 620T T
S6'T0L'EVT S660°0 S 9LT'6Yr'T 820T o]
69 LT VYT $660°0 S v8STIr'T LT0T 6
8E'8ST'IFT S660°0 S PSE'ELVT 9z0¢ g
9€'S6E'LYT S660°0 S S8€98Y'T ST0T L
§5°8£9'8YT S660°0 S 088'86%'C 20z 9
66'L88'61T S660°0 S LEVTIST £20T S
TLEPTTIST S660°0 S LSOYTS'T 7oz ¥
¥£°S0%'25T S660°0 $ TrL'9EST 1Z0T €
TT'7L9'EST 5660°0 S BB8YEYST 0z0Z [4
S8'8Y6'rST $660°0 $ 00€795C 6102 T
150D 3Lid uoIPnpo.d [enuuy JB3A
|enuuy aseyaind Jepusjed

papiaold soa1 sjgemauad pue lpas Axoeded sawnssy

810C [euonesado

papnay s23y

S660°0 S 99114 Iseyaang

S,UMA 00€°295°C uonanpold [enuuy

MIN ST'T Aypoey yo azis

|esodoud @8elaH
Jamod pue 3ysi Al astaned ]

19



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 1, 2018

Subject: Fiber to the Premise (FTTP) Project Authorization

TCL&P has been studying the feasibility of a Fiber to the Premise (FTTP) project at great lengths,
which included a Study Session on 1/23/2018 with the full Board. From this study session, several
directives were given to Staff to bring forward to a future Board meeting. This included a project
authorization and to seek bids for a phased approach of the entire FTTP project.

The utility first considered this project more than a decade ago when it approved a dark fiber
project in coordination with TCAPS. While the utility has several non-profit entities connected to
that system, including the county, city, TCL&P, all schools within the area and others, it is
recognized that this is an underutilized asset that could be deployed for the betterment of the
community.

The cost within the approved Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is currently at $11,000,000. This
was approved by the board with the thought of having an outside entity serve at the ISP. However,
after several meetings with the board appointed Ad Hoc Committee it was determined that TCL&P
should serve as the ISP, at least in the initial phase. The reasoning behind this approach would be
that the business plans that have been provided could be tested with actual results, as well, this
approach could determine if the utility has or can attain the competency needed to run the system.
The board determined that this decision, of who acts as the ISP, could be decided at a later date.

Staff, based on input from the board, is recommending a phased approach, circuit by circuit. Based
on advice from our consultants, the first phase would include circuits HL-22, HL-31, and HL-33
out of the Hall Street Substation. These circuits would cover all of Central Neighborhood, almost
all of the downtown area including 8™ Street, and the entirety of Woodmere Avenue.

There are members of the board that would like a more detailed business plan before embarking
on such an ambitious project. Conexon did provide a more “professional,” full business plan
report, which is attached. As well, a business plan was provided nearly ten years ago from Utility
Financial Solutions (which, of course, would need updating). Another option could be to hire the
company that performed the Holland Study, which some board members favored. This decision
could be addressed by the board in the following agenda item.

20



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

Regardless of the forward path for TCL&P, the board desired the fastest deployment, while
satisfying the many concerns and need for more information. While initially staff suggested that
engineering and design could be done in coordination with an updated or new business plan, it was
determined that bids should be sought for not only engineering and design, but for construction of
the system and full deployment of the network (including testing, etc.). The reason is that it would
be difficult to hold one company accountable for the proper functioning of the system if they were
not also responsible for its design and construction.

Therefore, staff recommends and seeks Board approval to solicit proposals by method of an RFP
for engineering/design, construction, and operations and maintenance of the system on a circuit by
circuit basis. Future expansion of the system can be determined by the board, based on the results
of prior deployments. The actual bids will help identify the true cost of the system for TCL&P.

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY .

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FOR
FIBER TO THE PREMISE PROJECT; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZES STAFF TO
SOLICIT PROPOSALS BY METHOD OF AN RFP FOR THE BOARDS FUTURE
CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

21



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

Project Name: Fiber to the Premise (FTTP)
Budgeted in CIP: Yes

Dollar Amount Budgeted: $11,000,000

Date of Board Presentation: February 13, 2018

Objective: To provide the benefits of high-speed internet access (and associated services)
through a fiber optic network to all customers of TCL&P through a not-for-profit system that
allows for local control of rates while proving the highest reliability of services.

Project Description:

The project consists of rolling out fiber in a phased approach to all customers served by TCL&P.
Phase I of the project including circuits HL.-22, HL-31, and HL-33 out of the Hall Street
Substation (see the attached map).

Project Purpose and Necessity:

The purpose of this project is to utilize TCL&P’s spare capacity fiber as a benefit for the entire
community.

This project will also diversify TCL&P’s offerings of solely providing electric services to
include broadband services. With ongoing initiatives on power consumption reduction, TCL&P
could add additional service offerings for long-term utility sustainability. Given that TCL&P
already owns and operates the fiber backbone serving dark fiber customers, this project would
expand upon this existing service while giving TCL&P another service offering to its portfolio.

Finally, as TCL&P is primarily a distribution company for electric services, this would be a very
similar operation in nature to be a distribution company for fiber services.

Project Benefits:

The electrical grid will take advantage of fiber throughout the service territory for different
items, such as distribution automation. Because the fiber would become more readily available,
grid modernization projects would become more readily available.

Fiber throughout the area could also be utilized for a myriad of different opportunities and
potential throughout the city. For example, fiber connections could be deployed to streetlights
for monitoring and traffic calming. Currently, running fiber to just streetlights is cost
prohibitive, but because of a large-scale deployment, it makes projects like this cost effective.

Many organization within the community, including leaders of some of the largest employers,

22




TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

tremendous. That this service would increase property values, attract industry and entrepreneurs
to the area and put the City of Traverse City in the forefront to become a tech hub in Northern
Michigan.

Other Alternatives:

Do nothing and continue with operations as normal, or proceed by proving lit fiber services to
the existing dark fiber customers.

Timing of Project:

Staff would put together an RFP for engineering design, construction, and deployment services
for the board’s future consideration in early 2018.

Project Timeline and Expenditures

RFP and selection will happen in 2018. Anticipated project start dates would be the first quarter
0f 2019. The expected project completion date for phase one would is the first quarter of 2020;
however, customers can be served as the system is constructed.

Target Completion date of 2020 for full deployment of Phase 1.

Preliminary Engineering Cost Estimate: These amounts will be determined as bids are
received as the only estimates currently are included in the study for full deployment (see the full
Conexon Study attached).

Financing Method:

Current cash reserves from the electric fund could be utilized through an interdepartmental loan to
the fiber fund for Phase I of the project, or the utility could employ short-term borrowing, as
allowed by city charter.

Additional Revenues: Customers of this project would bring in additional revenues to the
TCL&P Fiber Fund as determined by Board approved rates. It is the intent that the TCL&P
electric ratepayer’s not subsidize this separate enterprise in the long-term. The users of the
system will support its construction and operations going forward.

Impact on O&M Expenses: Depending on the future decision as to whom will service as the
ISP (TCL&P or an outside provider(s)) staffing levels will change to adequately service the
customers and maintain the network.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends the board approve the Project Authorization Request, as presented, and
authorize staff to seek bids for all aspects of FTTP (in an a la carte format).

23



TRAVERSE CITY

) LIGHT & POWER

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST

This would include, but is not limit to, the following items: Project Management, Engineering
Design for Fiber & Electronics, Fiber Construction, Electronics Installation and Provisioning,

Fiber and Electronics O&M, Customer Call Center, etc.

24



Rt i ot e

4
g

Traverse Cily

25



TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Copyright © 2018, Conexon, LLC

DCOFIGXOI’]

26



1. Background and Introduction

Conexon submits this report to Traverse City Light & Power (TCLP) as a supplement to the
presentation made in February 2017 and the materials supplied at that time.

Conexon’s sole mission is to support electric cooperatives in rising rural America by bringing
world-class fiber to the home (FTTH) and 4G LTE mobile wireless connectivity to unserved and
underserved areas of the country. In 2016, Conexon was retained by several Michigan electric
cooperatives to produce a statewide business plan for fiber to the home networks across the
state using electric cooperative infrastructure. Three of the electric cooperatives involved in the
statewide plan are now constructing and/or operating fiber networks to serve their members.

In August 2016, TCLP engaged Conexon to produce a plan based on the approach being used by
Michigan electric cooperatives.

Conexon’s Methodology
We are a team of professionals from electric cooperatives and from the telecommunications
industry who have been part of groundbreaking endeavors throughout our careers, including:
¢ the first rural gigabit service;
* the first FTTH network built to 100% of the members of an electric cooperative;
e the first rural network to deploy Next Generation PON technology;
o the first rural FTTH network built completely without government assistance;
¢ the first U.S. National fiber optic network;
e the first private Trans-Atlantic fiber optic network;
¢ the first U.S. national wireless network;
¢ the first U.S. national digital wireless data network.

To date, the Conexon team has assisted over fifty electric cooperatives with their fiber
businesses, prepared business plans for dozens of coops and designed or managed construction
for over a dozen coop fiber projects.

This report contains a complete and actionable business plan to construct, operate and
maintain a FTTH network to TCLP's electric customers. The essence of the business plan is to
deploy a FTTH network within two years and make available 100 Mbps and Gigabit services at
affordable prices to 100% of Traverse City, including all homes, businesses and public
institutions, without any subsidization from TCLP’s electric customers. Our response herein
details the output of that business plan, including our proposed business structure, key
assumptions, plans and pricing, 10-year financial forecasts, and the roles and responsibilities of
TCLP and a separate subsidiary or third-party operator.

Starting with the Co-Mo Connect project in Missouri, and with every coop we've assisted, we

recommend that (1) the objective is universal service — the same high level of service at the
same prices to 100% of a coop’s members, (2) the electric-only members of the coop should

27



not subsidize the fiber business, and (3) the fiber network will be a valuable, long-term asset of
the coop and should be owned by the members. The structural design we have established for
coops across the country is one by which the coop owns the fiber and leases the fiber either to
a separate subsidiary or a third party operator. Whether the operator is a separate subsidiary
or third party, the business plan is the same.

We have taken the same approach in our planning for TCLP: 100% coverage without cross-
subsidies from the electric ratepayers. This approach is the same whether TCLP chooses to
operate the network or, as TCLP has requested, utilizes a third-party network operator.

This report contains the output of the business plan. We would welcome the opportunity to
discuss our findings and proposals again in person or by phone, and to respond to any
additional questions that may arise.

2. Business Structure

We propose a business structure whereby TCLP will own and maintain fiber constructed on
TCLP’s distribution lines to every TCLP electric customer, and a subsidiary or third-party
operator will enter into an exclusive lease for dark fiber to operate the network and provide
internet access, telephone and television services to TCLP’s electric customers. TCLP’s needs
for internal communication and smart grid can be fulfilled by the operator, or can be addressed
by reserving fiber strands for TCLP’s needs.

At a high level, the business structure establishes clear demarcation lines and responsibilities.
Specifically:

e TCLP contracts with Conexon or other firm for fiber design and project management

+ TCLP owns the fiber on distribution lines
TCLP leases dark fiber to separate subsidiary or third-party operator

* Fiber lease calculated to provide TCLP positive cash flow in the first year and

every year

Guaranteed positive rate of return from lease for all fiber assets
» Separate subsidiary or third-party operator owns electronics and provides retail service
* Service made available to 100% of TCLP electric customers

The dark fiber lease payment will be calculated to fully cover TCLP’s costs of construction, cost
of money, maintenance, plus a share of revenue for a guaranteed return on investment. We
have prepared a dark fiber lease agreement, which we will provide upon request. The
agreement is set up so that the operator will pay TCLP on a per mile basis for fiber as the fiber is
constructed and capable of being lit. By covering all of TCLP’s costs, the agreement is designed
to ensure that TCLP will be cash flow positive in the first year and every year.

The dark fiber lease payment ensures that the electric ratepayers do not subsidize the fiber
business. An exclusive dark fiber lease will protect the electric ratepayers. Should TCLP decide

28



instead that it would prefer an open access network, we would caution against arrangements
that will not fully cover TCLP’s cost of construction and maintenance of the network.

In order to provide you financial detail, we have prepared a business plan that is split between
the infrastructure owner (TCLP) and the operator. The first ten years of a 20-year financial plan
is set out in the sections titled Financial Forecast.

This split business plan contains hundreds of assumptions based upon our experience and the
dozens of coop fiber projects we have assisted. For the fiber infrastructure, the assumptions
include:

¢ 24-month project duration

¢ Two phases of construction with board approval for each phase

+ Distributed split or tap architecture for GPON technology

+ All passive network from substation to premise

« Any financial benefit to TCLP from smart grid or economic development is an additional

benefit, not calculated in the model
s 20-year bond, 2.75% interest
* 58% aerial, 42% underground (primary distribution)

For operations, the assumptions include:
« 2-year project schedule coincides with cooperative fiber build
* GPON fiber to the home architecture
s Full triple play model
» 100 Mbps for $49.95 and Gigabit for $79.95 all symmetrical
» Residential unlimited local and long distance phone $24.95
« \olP phone service provided by Third Party voice provider
* Percent taking service within 24 months of each phase start: 25%
¢ Penetration growth rate of 3% annually capping at 50%
+ Declining phone take rate beginning at 25% of connects
¢ Declining TV take rate beginning at 60% of connects
» Gradually increasing highest internet tier take rate
» 550 marketing cost per new passing
» |Installation charge of $100
«  Smart grid communication to substations and downline SCADA devices provided at no
charge to TCLP

We believe this structure fully satisfies TCLP’s project requirements. Further detail is contained

in our response to sections on the technology, deployment schedule and financing, all of which
tie back the business plan described above.

29



3. Technology and Operations

The proposed solution to meet TCLP customers’ need for broadband is a FTTH network. TCLP’s
operator would light the network utilizing gigabit passive optical network (GPON) technology.
The distribution network would be an all passive network with no electronics between the
substation equipment and the home. The network design will accommodate both XGS-PON and
NG-PON2 technologies which have both been tested on an existing electric cooperative
network eventually accommodating 82.5 Gbps capacity per strand of fiber.

Example fiber hut
distribution network

Proposed High puttc P
Level Network eyt ¢
Diagram

16 ONT's per
‘GPON per Fiber

(- Proposed partner or regional operating entity

Protected
Ethernet Ring

Substation fiber
huts

Multiple paths to the
internet -

Protected
Ethernet Ring

Core Router /

Wi-Fi
Access

16 ONT's per
GPON per Fiber
Strand

Example fiber hut Wi-Fi
distribution network

Proposed high level network design. Diagram does not depict all substations or distribution
feeders.

A telecommunications building would be installed at each substation and would include GPON

access equipment connected via fiber on transmission or distribution lines. New fiber would be
deployed to reach substations not yet connected to fiber optics. The demarcation points

30



hetween TCLP and the operating entity are the fiber patch panel located in substation
telecommunication building/shelter and network interface device closure (NID) on side of
home or at electric meter location. We propose indoor ONT's that are connected to NID
demarcation with Wi-Fi availability. The operating entity will own the electronics at the
substations and the customer premises, as well as the headend and other facilities necessary to
provide video services. TCLP would be responsible for maintaining the physical fiber cable on
transmission and distribution lines.

The FTTH network would provide gigabit capable internet, telephone with unlimited long
distance, IP television, and SCADA and smart grid networking. Additional services such as home
security, streaming video, monitoring, and demand response can be evaluated in the future.

We recommend a tap or distributed split architecture for GPON technology. We design and
construct both distributed tap and distributed split architecture and leave excess strands for
dedicated and point to point circuits. The GPON network will support private VLAN's to offer
point to point ethernet circuits across the entire network. The network will be capable of NG-
PON2 which also introduces multiple wave lengths for shared access and dedicated point to
point waves.

A significant majority of all costs of a rural FTTH deployment are construction and materials.
Ongoing advancements in electronics have meant that the capacity of that plant can be
upgraded with electronics, rather than the addition of more fiber strands. A typical GPON or
gigabit passive optical network capable of 2.5 Gbps on a single fiber can be upgraded with the
hew next generation, NG-PON2, standard, which will support 80 Gbps on a single fiber. This
upgrade can be done with a “success-based” method, inserting the waves on the existing fiber
keeping the original 2.5 Gbps GPON network intact. This allows the preservation of existing
investment while enabling exponential growth in capacity.

4. Schedule

Below is our proposed 2-year schedule construction schedule. Construction would follow the
structure of the electric network, substation by substation and feeder by feeder. As each feeder
is constructed, the customers served electrically by the feeder will be notified of the
opportunity to subscribe to service, so that mainline construction, drops to the home, and
installations are performed in an efficient manner.

At the end of the first phase of construction, we would review with the TCLP board the actual
costs and revenues as compared to the business plan we have presented, and make any
necessary adjustments. Since the dark fiber lease fee is based on the cost of construction, we
would re-calculate the lease fee if costs have been materially different than the plan.

The order of substations identified below can be modified, particularly if TCLP has other

priorities. Generally, we favor constructing to more densely populated substations in the early
phases, and the order below reflects such an approach.

31



aGakasA

Reskuy

=
:
=
l"} 5
L%
Secie B4
fue
Towr}sh%
e Pozs R4
=z
;
, B -
f E
i‘ L» ting 4
I A" R P P Mﬂ?;gl?lﬁﬂﬁb:\.\'ﬂ

Services
passed Aerial miles UG miles Total miles Density  Capital investment
1 6,121 47 26 73 83.7 $8,263,76
2 4,675 59 52 111 42.3 $7,948,533
10,796 106 78 184 58.8 $16,212,29 !
74

32




5. Competition and Take Rates

Subscriber take rate is critical to meeting revenue projections in the financial model. Take rate
is also the biggest unknown variable when starting a project. Several factors play into take rate
including demographics, competition, and packaging and pricing. In addition to subscriber take
rate, higher service tier take rates can help drive additional revenue from an existing fiber
connection.

Assumptions used in these projections are supported by using the take rates of other similar
projects. TCLP’s demographics were compared to other cooperative and municipal electric
FTTH projects. Competition will be the main factor in predicting customer take rates. All take
rates below are projected at 24 months after construction begins in an area.

Four different categories of competition were utilized to predict take rates. Using FCC 477 data
along with other publicly available data, every service point in TCLP's territory was classified
into four categories and given a predicted take rate probability. Using this methodology, the
following take rates were determined:

Unserved — Any location that did not have at least an advertised 10 mbps service available.

DSL class service — Locations with speeds available up to 24 mbps.

Full triple play broadband competition with greater than 25mbps download speed — These
locations have all three services available with good broadband speeds and a full
television offering available for bundling.

FTTH service with real broadband speeds— These locations have the potential of all three
services available with good broadband speeds and a possible full television offering
available for bundling.

COMPETITIVE OFFERINGS

Intro
Competitor Techm‘osv Ifernekuiice -

AT&T 1.5mbps $30.00
' 3.0mbps $30.00

Charter Cab[e 60mbps Intro 544,99 Y )
$59.99

33



DEMOGRAPHIC COMPARISON WITH CONTROL MARKETS

Rural Rural
Traverse City Municipal power cooperative cooperative
Demographic Market FTTH market market 1 market 2

Population growth (2000-2015) 15.8% - 12.2% 10.8% -2.2%
Median householdincome $52,950 $40,177 547,725 $44,449
Per cépita income $28,050 $24,643 $20,901 $21,559
%familiesbelowpoverty 6.8% 16.9% 12.9% 12.5%
% families with retirement or 551 56.6% 49.7% 70.6% 55.2%
% households with public assistance 19.3% 31.6% 21.4% 24.6%
‘Population without high school diploma 6.3% 14.8% 14.8% 14.8%
Population with college degree 31.5% 27.2% 17.5% 14.7%

We compare the demographics of an area to adjust our take rate assumptions when necessary.
Nationally, over seventy percent of households subscribe to broadband today, and the
subscription rates vary depending upon demographics. High-income households subscribe at a
greater level than low-income. Low-income households report wireless-only internet access at
substantially higher levels than the rest of the population. People with college degrees
subscribe at a higher level than those without college or high school degrees. Families with
school age children subscribe at a higher level than households without school age children.
Urban and suburban households subscribe at a higher level than rural households. We find that
differences between rural areas and urban or suburban areas are due to availability and

affordability, not demand. Unsurprising to us, when priced at $49.95 for 100 Mbps symmetrical,

uncapped service, and $79.95 for 1 Gbps symmetrical, uncapped service, rural America
subscribes to broadband at the same rates as the rest of the country. TCLP’s demographics are
in line with our control markets and we have not made any adjustments to our assumptions
due to the demographic profile.

6. Services and Pricing

As mentioned in other sections, we recommend residential offers of 100 Mbps symmetrical,
uncapped service for $49.95 per month and 1 Gbps symmetrical, uncapped service for $79.95
per month. A managed Wi-Fi service would be available for $4.95 per month. Unlimited local
and long distance telephone service would be priced at $24.95 per month. Pricing for television
packages will be determined at a date closer to launch based on current wholesale video
programmer pricing.

34



Our approach is to offer “always fair” pricing, to have just two tiers of service and to avoid
promotions and gimmicks where prices are raised after several months. Above, we show the
current service offers of the telephone and cable competitors. Our recommended pricing will
be very attractive, even assuming a competitive response.

We propose a minimum 100 Mbps symmetrical service offering because we don’t consider 25/3
Mbps, much less the FCC’s rural definition of 10/1 Mbps, to be adequate for today’s residential
internet use. The FCC’s definition of broadband, as an asymmetrical 25/3 Mbps level of service,
was established for political, not economic or technological reasons. We would not choose to
offer 25/3 Mbps service, since our experience is that the vast majority of rural Americans prefer
more robust services.

Broadband is not just a speed for a single device. Broadband is the capability to access the
Internet with the speed, capacity and latency necessary for whatever number of devices are
normally in use at a home or business or school at any time. Households typically have multiple
devices using the internet throughout the day: computers of various types, smartphones,
tablets, televisions, gaming devices, as well as an increasing number of devices connected as
part of the larger ecosystem known as the Internet of Things. Because of the increased number
of devices, and the increase in video streaming, the average household use of the internet has
increased from 2 GB a month to 100-150 GB within the past decade. That growth is expected to
continue. Within ten years, we full well expect the average household to use 1 Terabyte of
service per month. We believe the network you build today should be capable of meeting
future needs.

Our recommended pricing of broadband is intended to make the service affordable to all
households. To the extent that the $49.95 price point is still out of reach, the newly reformed
federal Lifeline program now provides assistance to subscribers of broadband service. The
Lifeline program pays $9.25 per month. Eligibility by consumers for Lifeline requires
participation in one of the following federal assistance programs: SNAP, Medicaid, SSI, FPHA or
the Veterans Pension benefit or Survivors Pension benefit. Most households earning less than
$40,000 per year are eligible for Lifeline assistance.

10

35



7. Financial Forecast — TCLP as the Operator

Description Value

Subscribers end of construction period 2,870
Total capital investment for fiber $16,212,295
Net income breakeven Year 6
Overall net income breakeven (accumulated losses recovered) Year 11
Number of employees end of construction in operating entity 11

Below are the outputs of our business plan with TCLP as the operator, showing TCLP’s 10-year
financial summary, projected income statement, balance sheet, and cash flow. We have
prepared financial projections over twenty years, which have been made available.

Traverse City Fiber Model: Preliminary Summary

Miles constructed end of year 69 175 176 178 180 182 183 185 187 189
Premises Passed 6121 10,736 10,504 11,013 1,123 11,234 11,347 11,460 11,575 11,691
Subseribers ] 2870 3252 3641 4,038 4,412 4,854 5,273 5,701 6,136
Revenue 6571686  $2,660,106  $4510797  $5,159.967 5838441  $6547,343 57,287,813  $8,061,001 $8.858059  $9,710,143
Revenue grawth 0.0% 365.3% 69.6% 144% 13.0% 120% 13% 106% 10.0% 9.5%
Employees 9 11 1 1 1 11 1n 13 13 13
EBMTDA 41,015,072 4228086 $932935  SI,258584  SLE14313  $1985445  $2372,693 2,650,676  $3030,736 33466643
EBITDA grawth 775% 509.0% 349% 283% 230% 195% 134% 126% 144%
EBITDA margin 177.6% 86% 207% 234% 276% 303% 326% 334% M2% 35.7%
EBITDA - Capex 49,278,835 -$8,176,619 §221.827 $572,297 $508,042  $1,240091  $5,375403 51862340 52240931  §2655120
Capex $8,263,762  $7.848533 $711,108 $686,287 §706,271 $745,354 $557,291 $828,336 $789,745 $811,523
Cumulative Capex $8,263,762  S16212,135  SI6923404  $17,609690  S18315962  $19,06),316  $20058,606  $10885912  $21676687  $22483210
Debt balance $9.964089  $18,251,353  $18525518  S$18515321  S1B,162,971  $S17477447  SI6637011  $15625820  S$14586820  $13519,243
Traverse City Fiber Model: Projected Income Statement
Year: | 2 3 1 5 6 7 8 9 10
Revenue
Internet revenue 258,585 1,174,079 1,955,055 2,204,292 2,459,593 2,721,067 2,988,825 3,262,980 3,543,646 3,820,939
Video revenue 231,559 1,086,514 1,870,297 2,170,275 2,491,561 2,835,144 3,202,022 3,593,202 4,009,696 4,452,510
Vokce reverve 40,295 182,437 302,934 340,591 378970 418,034 457,841 458,554 539,934 582,091
Large commercial tevenua 64,200 321,000 555,073 638,823 724,193 811,206 599,887 920,261 1,082,352 1,176,185
Bundla discounts (22,954) (103,924) (172,563) {134,014) (215,877) (238,157) (260,862) {283,997) (307,568) (335,583)
Total Revenue 571,636 2,660,106 4510,797 5.159.967 5833441 6,542,343 2.287.813 £,061,001 8,868,039 9,710,183
Bandwidth costs 192,600 192,000 193,412 204,636 216,030 227,601 239,353 251,290 263,419 275,745
Videa programming costs 170,702 793,335 1,352,622 1,558,621 1,767,769 1,992,384 2,228,775 2,477,037 2,738,050 3,011,473
Telephone costs 11,180 50,616 84,047 94,495 105,143 115,35 127,054 138,321 143,802 161,438
Total Cost of Sales 373,882 1,035,952 1,630,082 1,853,752 2,088,943 2,335,980 2,595,181 2,866,849 3158272 3,448,716
Gross Marging 137,804 1,624,154 2880715 3306215 2743493 42113 4,692,632 194,1 5716787 6261426
Operating Expenses
Cotporate overhead labor and expense 554,063 £00,578 735528 776,219 £02,330 819,256 B57,024 835,660 915,189 945,633
Direct Labar and Benefits 130,500 267,515 274,213 281,068 288,095 295,298 202,680 387,809 477,005 488,930
Technical support costs 727M 33,103 55,099 62,037 69,108 76,314 83,658 91,141 93,765 106,532
Marketing expenses 306,050 306,050 305,050 306,050 306,050 206,050 306,050 306,050 306,050 306,050
Maintenance 5,212 18,302 26,312 26,575 26,841 27,109 27,380 27,654 27,51 28,210
Gy gross revenue feas 28584 133,005 225,540 257,998 291,922 327,367 364,391 403,050 443,403 485,507
General Operating Expenses 181,196 233,677 325,037 337,683 350,839 3845 378,756 402,112 417,710 433917
Total Operating Expenses 1,212,876 1,852,240 1,942,779 2,047,631 2,135,185 2,215,918 2,319,939 2,503,476 2,686,051 2,793,784
8110, (1,015,072} {228,086} 32,9 1,258,584 1618313 1985445 2372693 2690676 3,010,736 3466643
Interest incoma 1] ] [} L] ] 0 1] ] o 0
Interest expense 137,006 398,207 516,809 521,232 516,576 503,208 482,606 457,518 429,110 401,138
Depreciation 164,900 903,138 1,193,757 1,261,826 133,128 1,403,804 1,459,623 1,400,197 1,343,065 1,393,644
Net Income before taxes (1,316579)  {1,529431) (775,630} (524,474) (234,391) 78,423 430,464 832,561 1,257,960 1,671,811
Income taxes 0 [ 0 1] (1] 0 o 0 o 1]
(L316979)  {1.529.431) (215630} {214.331) pLEES ] 420464 B32.961 1.257.96¢
Cumulative Net Income {loss) (1,316,979)  (2,845410)  (3,622,040)  (4,146,514)  (4,320,905)  (8,302471)  (3872,007)  (3,039,06)  (1,781,085) (103,274)

11



Traverse City Fiber Model: Projected Balance Sheet

Year: 1 2 3 4 5 & 7 2 3 10
Assets
Cash €01,074 190,606 21,694 16,206 10,030 4335 2214 346,083 1,055,659 2,190,333
Receivables 47,640 221676 375,900 429,537 485,537 545612 07318 671,750 739,005 £03,179
Deferred Income Tax - - - - . - - - « 5
Total current assets 648,715 412,281 397,593 446,203 456,617 543,946 €09,531 1,017,833 1804684 2,533,517
Leng term property 3,876,432 10,145,948 10,434,450 10,811,691 11,147,901 11,433272 11,847,573 12212172 12,585,043 12,569,761
Mid term property 3,785,979 4,572,566 4,740,012 4,900,791 5,065,599 5234502 5,407,564 5,584,853 5,766,434 5,352,377
Short term property €01,351 1433782 1,698,912 1,897,208 2,102,462 233350 2,803,010 3,089,917 3328209 3566072
Long term accumulated depreciation (77,529) 357,978) (770.585) (1,155,508} 1.635,700) (2,083,523 {2,555,348) (3,036,551} (3,532,51¢) (4.043,532)
Mid term accumulated deprediation (75,720) (493,647) (959,276) (1,441,316} (1,939,635) {2.454,640) (2,985,749} (3,535,355} (4,103,929} (4,689,859)
Short term accumu'ated deprediation (11,652) {216,415) (529,933) (883,797) (1.278,014) 11,713,339) (2,174,634} (2,544,057} (2,823,534} (3.120,231)
Totalassels BTSN 15556538 _AS061200 _MMSM I 13353239 13334100 129513610 __JRJAZE0) __JAO0M) _M3633993
Liabifities ond Equity
Payables and deferred revenus 100,467 151,595 157,723 165,466 172173 179,134 186,357 201,028 215,607 224021
Bank debt 9,964,089 18,251,351 18525518 18,515,321 18,167,971 17,477,447 16,637,011 15615810 145868120 13,519,248
Total iabiities 10,064,556 18,402,948 18,633,242 18,680,787 18,340,144 17,656,580 16,813,368 15,826,843 14,802,427 13,743,269
Accurnulated incomefloss (131,979} (2,245,410} (3,622,040} (4,145,514) (8,380,305} (4,302,471} (3.872,007) 3,039,048} 1,781,035) (109,274)
Contributed equity . = - - - $ 1 =t - 2
Total Equity (1,316,979)  (2,846410)  (3,622,040)  (4,146,504)  (4380,905)  (4,302471)  (3872,007) (3,039,046}  (1,781,085) (109,274}
IotalUabilities and Equity —A747577 __J555653%F __)AS06120F 14534373 . 13959239 . 13354109 12951361 _ 12787.802 _ 13021343 13633995

Traverse City Fiber Model: Projected Cash Flow Summary

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow from operatiens 11,033,252} (749,200) 268,031 690,937 1,047,505 L4012 1,835,605 2,183,397 2,548,350 3,003,745
Debt service . - (745,067) {809,217} (866,947) (914,937) {951,507) (384,128) (1,011,192) (1,039,000) (1,067,572}
Capital Expenditures
Capex- Fiber plant (3,458,150) (5,275,715} (87,233} (€8,212} (89,034} (89,985} (90.885) {91,734} {92,713) (23,633
Capex - Newdrops (318,283) (824,418) {200,463} (186,577) (193,057) {193,647) (205,349} (213,165} [220,033) (227,148)
Capax- Maintenance - {19,382) {50,730} {s2.422} {54.038) (55,740} (57.466) {59,240} (61,061) (62,930}
Capex - Network 13,923,530} (1,663,018 {372,576) (359,075) (370,062) (381,233} 1392,590) (404,1135) (a15,874) (427,806)
Capex - Startup and operations (558,750) (150,000) - - - - {240,000) {60,000] - -
Proceeds from debt financing 9,964,089 9,032,332 1,083,382 856,749 567,587 260,983 143,693 - - -
Equity conlributions - - - - - - - - - -
Equity distributicns - - B . . - - - - .
Total sources and uses 601,074 {400,469) (188,912) {54838) (5,116} 12,934 78713 343,859 719,606 1,114,650
Cash batance 601,074 100,606 31694 26,206 20,030 33084 40,964 384,833 1,104,439 2,229,089
Debt balance 9,964,089 18,251,353 18,525,518 18515321 18,167,971 17,477,447 16,637,011 15,625,820 14,586,820 13,519,248

8. Financial Forecast — Independent Operator

Description Value

Subscribers end of construction period 2,870
Total capital investment for fiber $10,095,448
Net income Year 2
LOverall net income breakeven Year 2

TCLP would finance the construction of the mainline fiber, drops and installations, which
includes network design and make ready costs. An independent, third-party operator would
finance all electronics, at the substation and at the customer premises, as well as the television
headend and set top boxes.

12

37



TCLP’s business is net income positive in the first year, as shown in the income statement

below. As described in the section on Business Structure, positive cash flow for TCLP is part of
the design of our proposed structure.
Traverse City Fiber Model - Independent Operator: Preliminary Summary

Mifes constructed end of year
Homes Passed

Revenue
Revenue growth
EBMDA

EBITDA growth
EBITDA margin
EBITDA - Capex
Capex
Cumutative Capex
Debt balance

Year:
Revenue
Fiber lease revenue
Management and admin

Total Revenue
Gross Marging

Operating Expenses

Utilty management labor

Maintenance

City gross revenue fees

General Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

EBITD,
Interestincome
Interest expense
Depreciation

Netlncome before taxes
Income taxes

Cumulative Net income (loss)

Year:
Assets
Cash
Receivables
Loans to subsidiary
Deferred Income Tax
Total current assets

Long term property
Mid term proparty
Short term property

Leng term accumutated deprecistion
Mid Lerm accumadated depreciation
Short term accumulated depreciation

Lotalasiels

Liabifities and Equity

Payables and deferred revenue

Bank debt
Total Habilities

Arcumulated income/loss
Contributed equity
Total Equity

1 biltes and Eaui

[ 175 176 178 180 182 133 185 187 183
6121 10,796 10,504 11,013 11,123 11,234 11,347 11,460 11,575 11,691
$295,177  $1,054069  $1,533284  S1,574042  SL610,232  $1,647921 51,687,179 $1,728079  $1,770658 51815114
0.0% 37.1% 45.0% 23% 23% 23% 24% 24% 25% 25%
$84.517 §780399  S1,223688  §1,305826 51335899 51,367,287  $1400053  $1434262  $1469955 51,507,293
820.1% 55.8% 67% 3% 23% 24% 24% 25% 25%
8% 740% 795% 830% 83.0% B3.0% 83.0% BIO% 83.0% 81.0%
43,831,615  -$5333,617 $256,409 $979,873  $L000555  $1,023,187  SLO4GE30  SL071316  SL097404  $1,124872
$3.976,432  $5,113,015 $337,279 $325,953 $334,944 634,100 $353,423 $362,916 $372,581 $382,420
63076432  §10,095448  $10432,727  SI07S8,680  S11,093624  $11A37,724 11,791,147 $12150063  $12526643  §12,909,063
64210578 $9,779,784  $9411,708  $9,028908  $8630736  $8216760  S$7.785163  $7,338ML  $6872607  $6,388243
Traverse City Fiber Model - Independent Operator: Projected income Statement
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 ] 10
235,177 1,054,069 1,539,281 1,574,042 1,610,232 1,647,921 1,687,179 1,728,079 1,770,693 1,815,114
295,177 1,054,069 1539284 1574042 1610232 1647921 £37,173 1728,073 1770658 1815114
295177 1,054,06; 1,539,284 1574042 1510232 1647921 1L687,179 1718079 1,770,698 1815114
121,438 124,473 127,585 76,123 78,026 79,976 81,976 84,025 £5,126 83,279
5212 18,302 26,312 26,575 26,841 27,109 27,380 27,654 27931 28210
14,759 52,703 76,964 78,702 80,512 82,396 84,359 86,404 83,535 90,756
68,952 73,191 83,734 86,815 83,554 91,152 93,412 95,734 93,122 100,576
210,360 273,670 315,596 268,215 274,332 280,634 287,127 293,817 300,713 307,821
84817 780,399 1223688 1,305,826 1335899 36728 1,400,053 1434262 1.469.985 1502293
[ [ ] o [} [ 0 o 0 0
84212 286,886 391,191 376,468 351,156 385,232 328,670 311,447 293,534 274,504
79519 293,438 422,563 435,828 443,046 462,617 476,577 490,504 505,614 510,714
(78,923} 200,076 403,933 493,530 525,637 559,428 594,605 631,911 670,837 711,674
0 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 0 0
200.076 409933 423530 525697 352418 234805 £i1511 £20837 L1674
(73,923) 121,153 531,086 1,024,616 1,550,313 2,109,741 2,704,546 3,336,457 4,007,254 4,718,969
Traverse City Fiber Model - Independent Operator: Projected Balance Sheet
1 2 3 5 7 8 10
227,683 113,422 203623 417,383 656,564 912,868 1,202,453 1,511,727 1,816,885 2,209,381
23598 87,833 123,274 131,170 124,186 137,327 140,598 144,007 147,558 151,259
252,281 201,261 331,896 548,553 750,750 1,055,195 1,343,097 1,655,713 1,994,484 2,360,641
3,776,432 9,835,442 10,232,727 10558680 10893624 11,237,724 11,585,147 11,554,063 12,326,643 12,709,063
200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
(75,529) (348,968) (751,530)  (1,167,358) (1,596.404) 2,033,031} (2,495,608) (2,966,513) {3452,127) (3.952,841)
(3,000) (24,000) (44,000} (64,000} {84,000) {104,000) (124,000) [144,000) (164,000) (184,000)
— 4149185 95823743 ___ 59969093 __1001585 _ 10203971 __ 10349883 _ 10514636 __ 10699283 10504960 __IL132E63
17,530 22,506 26,300 22,351 22,861 23,386 23927 24485 25,059 25,652
4210,578 9,779,784 9,411,708 9,028,908 8,630,736 8,216,760 7,786,163 7,338,341 6,872,607 6,388,243
4,228,108 9,802,590 9,438,007 9,051,259 8,653,657 8,240,145 7,810,090 7,362,826 6,897,666 6,413,895
(73,223) 121,153 531,086 1,024,616 1,550,313 2,109,741 2,704,545 3,336,457 4,007,234 4,718,969
{78,923} 124,153 531,086 1,024,616 1,550,313 2,109,741 2,704,546 3,336,457 4,007,294 4,718,569
— 4149085 __ 9923743 __9969093 . 10075875 _ 10203971 __1034988% __J0S14636F _ 10699283 _ 10904960 __1LI32EB63

13



Traverse City Fiber Model - Independent Operator: Projected Cash Flow Summary

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow from operations
Debt service
Capital Expenditures

Capex - Fiber planmt

Capex - New drops

Capex - Maintenance

Capex - Netwoek

Capex - Startup and operations
Proceeds from debt financing
Loan disbursements to subsidiary
Loan payments from subsidiary
Equity contributions
Equity distributions
Contributions in assediated org
Total sources and uses

Cath batance
Debt balance

(6.462)

13,458,150)
(318,283)

(200,000)
4,210,578

227,683

227,683
4,210,578

435548
(353,920)

(5,275,715}
(824.418)
(18,882}

{114,261)

13,422
9,779,784

735,556
(388,077)

(87,339)

(200,463)
{43.477)

90,200

03,623
9,411,708

922513
(382,800}

{e8.212)

(166,577)
(51,164)

213,761

417,383
9,028,508

972,237 1,019,440
(398,112) (414,036)
(83.034) (89,955)
(193,057) (199.647)
(52,793) (54,468)
235,181 261,304
656,564 917,868
8,630,796 8,216,760

1,069,652
(430,598)

(20,885}
(206,349)
(56,189}

284,631

1,202,453
7,786,163

1,119,965
{sar.821)

(31,729)

{213,165)
(57.536)

30,228

1,511,727
7,338,341

1,173,474
(465,739)

192,712

(220,033)
(59.770)

335,159

1846236
6,872,607

1229279
(484,364)

{93,639)

[227,148)
(61.633)

362,495

2,209,181
6,383,243

14

39



10. Partnerships with Michigan Electric Cooperatives

We encourage partnerships with neighboring distribution and transmission cooperatives to
enable sharing of resources, equipment, and services where possible. Specifically, in the case
of TCLP’s region, we recommend a relationship with another provider or a future statewide or
regional partnership among electric utilities providing broadband. The partnership could be as
simple as purchasing voice and IPTV service or as complex as the other provider or the
statewide or regional partnership entity being the provider on TCLP’s fiber. Each of Midwest
Energy and Communications, Great Lakes Energy and Homeworks Tri-County Electric
Cooperative are currently providing broadband service to their members or have begun fiber
projects.

15

40



11. Keys to Success

Partnership — There are currently 3 electric cooperatives in Michigan building fiber to
the home with several other cooperatives expressing interest. We believe partnership
- and cooperation among electric cooperatives and TCLP would create advantages over
going it alone.

Proven technology and architecture — The proposed deployment for TCLP is a proven
solution built on proven individual technologies. The solution is a known working
solution able to provide reliable gigabit internet, telephone, and either linear IPTV or
over-the-top video. GPON technology is the most widely used FTTH platform in the
world and with new advances in the standards, the fiber optic infrastructure will last for
decades.

Personnel — Selecting the right personnel with the required technical abilities and the
motivation to succeed and the persistence to overcome obstacles is critical. A project of
this scale is not easy and there will be many unforeseen challenges and barriers. Long
hours and hard work will be required of the personnel involved in the project. The right
people will be motivated by the challenge and goal of the success of the project and will
give South Central every opportunity to succeed. We recommend a continuing
engagement with Conexon to ensure the implementation matches the presented plan.

Make-ready — Fiber make-ready costs can be a significant expense to the project. Make-
ready costs can vary wildly depending upon age and condition of existing electric
distribution infrastructure. Finding alternatives to replacing poles is instrumental in
keeping costs low while still maintaining appropriate clearances for safety.

Marketing — Most electric utilities operate in a monopoly environment. Sometimes a
culture exists that does not easily translate to a competitive business. Marketing is not
typically seen as a necessary expense in providing electricity. Creating a professional
image and an effective marketing strategy for a FTTH business can pay dividends in
increased take rates and selling additional services to new subscribers. A good
marketing effort can supplement the positive reputation of the electric utility.

16

41



Customer service — TCLP can capitalize on its reputation for customer service to provide
a better experience than phone and cable companies. Many new subscribers will be
selecting choices for each of the subscribed services. Preparing your personnel to help
those subscribers select the right package before the first connections are made is
important. Every employee has the potential to be a sales person for the new services
whether they are in the field or on the phone.

Execution — Our experience has been that the greatest risk is not demand or technology
or economics, it is operational execution, particularly in timely meeting the members’
expectations for construction and installation. To meet your customers’ desire for fiber
services, the pace should reach 50 new installations each week, week in and week out,
over the course of first two to three years. It is a more rapid pace of new customers, or
new services for members, than most electric coops or small municipal systems have
experienced. If your operations partner does not have experience working at that pace,
you risk falling behind the demand and falling behind the revenue projections.

17

42



Traverse City Light and Power
Meeting with Jason Allen
January 31, 2018

Rural Electrification started in 1936 through the Agricultural Act, the most recent bill was passed in
2014. If the utility was provided funds in the 1930s through the 1940s the utility is automatically eligible
for loan program which currently has a rolling rate of 1.33 to 1.5% or a fixed rate of 2.45% for 25 years.
Most recently, the activity of this program is $7B. In addition, the Director of Rural Utility Services is
interested in the TCL&P Fiber Project and is willing to come to Traverse City to discuss the project in the
future. 1) KARLA TO INVESTIGATE IF THE UTILITY WAS A RECEIPIENT OF THESE FUNDS. 2) STAFF TO
READ THE AGRICULTURAL ACT, SECTION 6000 TO OBTAIN AN UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROGRAM.

The State did not deny our most recent application, but rather deferred it due to limited amount of
funds available because of funds being allocated towards bridges and the City of Flint. With the new
infrastructure bill, 80% of the funds will be sent to the State and 20% to Rural Development. It was
discussed it would be beneficial to meet to discuss future funding distributions with Governor Snyder
along with Casey Cowell, Tim Arends, Jean Derenzy, City Commissioner or Light and Power Board
Member, State of Michigan Representative Inman and Senator Schmidt. JEAN DERENZY TO ORGANIZE
MEETING.

The new Agricultural Bill is being issued in October of this year and it would be helpful to discuss the
TCL&P Fiber Project primarily with U.S. Representative Jack Bergman and discuss what TCL&P would like
to see in the Bill regarding Block Grant Funding more specifically defining who is eligible. Additionally,
may be beneficial to discuss the project with Senator Debbie Stabenow. 1) JASON ALLEN TO SET UP
MEETING WITH JACK BERGMAN. 2) TIM ARENDS TO TALK WITH DEBBIE STABENOW,

TCL&P to meet with Sherman Farms, Shoreline Fruit and Sara Lee and discuss our project plans and
obtain their support for the meeting with the Director of Rural Utility Services. JEAN DERENZY TO SET
UP MEETINGS.

TCL&P to discuss the project with MMEA and APPA and obtain their general and lobbying support for

language in the Agricultural Bill being issued in October. TIM ARENDS TO TALK WITH MMEA AND
APPA.

43



21712018 High-Speed Fiber-Optic Internet in Traverse City.

High-Speed Fiber-Optic Internet in Traverse
City.

f‘l 36 responses

Residential Customer

#1 : Are you a residential customer of TCL&P?

1 36 responses

@ Yes
@ No

V

Continue, if you answered yes io question #1,

#1 a: If TCL&P offered high-speed fiber-optic residential Internet service
éthat increased your bi-directional connection speed substantially but at a

hllps:h'docs.google.comlformsldl1QI_nyRgIctOeZOzxsoSWTijU50y1eTYGKBpt44RUMewanalytics#star1=publishanalytics

13

44



217/2018 High-Speed Fiber-Optic Internet in Traverse City.

fcomparative price, would you switch Internet providers to TCL&P?

113 responses

@® Yes
@ No

Business Customer

%#2: Are you a business customer of TCL&P or a decision maker at a
business serviced by TCL&P?

136 responses

@ Yes
@ No

Continue, if you answered yes to question #2,

hups:Ildocs.google.comf{ormsldﬂQl__nyRgIct0eZOzx505WTjanU50y1eTYGK8pt44RUNiewanaIytics#start=publishanaly‘lics

213

45



21712018 High-Speed Fiber-Optic Internet in Traverse City.

#2a: If TCL&P offered a Business high-speed fiber-optic Internet service
that increased your bi-directional connection speed substantially but at a
comparative business price, would you switch Internet providers to
TCL&P?

i46 responses

@ Yes
@ No

Thank you for your participation!

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google. Report Abuse - Terms of Service - Additional Terms

=Zoogle Forms

hltps:lldocs.goog[e.comlformsfdliQ!_nyRgIclOeZOszoSWI]QmUSOyieTYGKapt44RUlviewanalylics#start=publi5hanalytics

313

46



Casey Cowell is a
tech entrepreneur,
philanthropist and
startup investor.
He is a principal
of local investment
group Boomerang
Catapult LLC.

m OPINON |

By Casey Cowell

Catch-up time —
we need gig fiber now

he litmus test for where

to locate and grow your

enterprise in the past

focused on factors like

highway access, water
and power services, or rail and other
transportation, It’s entirely different
today. Top of the list for many
enterprises now is access to true
high-speed internet.

Communities with speed attract
new enterprise. Those without are
left behind.

As of this past summer, about
25 percent of the U.S. is wired for
gigabit fiber. Gig fiber is internet
connectivity from your home or
office at the speed of one billion
bits per second. (My company’s
first modem products in 1976
provided 300 bps!) There are nearly
four billion internet users globally
— more than 50 percent of the
world population, Fiber’s breadth,
reliability and speed is affecting our
society.

In communities like ours — small,

somewhat remote and moving to
transition their economies, gigabit
fiber is a game changer.

Whether communicating with
satellites, developing software to be
deployed around the world, mining
cryptocurrencies or any number
of new and exciting ventures that
can happen right here in Traverse
City, a common thread is that they
all require true high-speed internet.
Traverse City Light and Power in
the spring of 2017 committed to
add to its capital plan gigabit fiber
deployment across our city. The
sooner deployment happens the
better.

Consider the number of people
now able to telecommute to jobs on
the other side of the country or the
other side of the world. Some are
doing that right here in Traverse City.
“Your New Boss: An Algorithm”
in the December 10th Wall Street

Journal spells this out.

Here’s a summary:

The last few years have seen
dramatic advances in Artificial
Intelligence and Machine Learning
— a well-known example is IBM
‘Watson. There are now Machine
Learning applications that track
and evaluate worker performance
over thousands of workers. When
new projects need to be staffed, the
computers choose the employees
... no matter where they’re located
(say, Traverse City) because with
gig-speed communications, teams
and interactions can become location
agnostic. Per Tomas Chamorro-
Premuzic, a professor of business
psychology at University College
London, “What managers do mostly
is identify potential, build teams,
assign tasks, measure performance
and provide feedback. Generally
speaking, humans aren’t very good
at these tasks.” Increasingly, players
will be chosen by an objective
algorithm that will be location
agnostic in its choices.

This is great for our residents and
community — if we have the internet
speed.

Our area’s first Blockchain
Boomerang is Eric Bravick. He spent
time in our area growing up and
always wanted to live and work here.
As an engineer and mathematician,
he has worked on the design and

development of over 50 commercial
grade data centers throughout
Asia, Europe and North American
that have focused on massive data
storage, artificial intelligence,
cryptocurrency operations and
trading. Eric on locating here:

“Returning to Traverse City to
run an internet based company has
been full of unnecessary difficulties.
Given that much of the country
is wired, managers of internet
companies assume high-speed fiber
is available, reliable and affordable,
thus making competitive connection
to the global business economy a
non-issue. Moving to Traverse City,
1 quickly discovered I had reverted
to Cable-Modem world, where speed
is limited, reliability is poor and cost
is high. It’s really far past time for
Traverse City to embrace high-speed
fiber throughout our area. The loss
of productivity and opportunity is
far greater than the entire cost of a
fiber buildout for the city when you
add up all the stories like mine and
combine them.”

Gigabit fiber is not a futuristic
luxury, but an absolute necessity
for our community. Just like paved
roads, water lines and reliable,
plentiful power, it is a requirement
to conduct business and a basic
expectation throughout much of our
country. True high-speed internet
will not be the one solution that will
springboard our economy and attract
outstanding companies to grow here.
But lack of it could continue to drag
us down. Let’s Get It. Encourage and
help TCLP to make this happen. [

Winter 2018 [FTTTRIITTENABUSINESS 5




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: February 1, 2018

Subject: Fiber to the Premise (FTTP) Feasibility Plan

At the Fiber to the Premise (FTTP) Study Session on 1/23/2018, several members of the Board
expressed interest in obtaining a written format of a feasibility study, similar to Holland Board of
Public Works plan, which was completed by Columbia Telecommunications Corporation (CTC).
While TCL&P originally hired Conexon to do a feasibility study, this was done with a presentation
format style so Conexon could fully engage and work with the Board throughout discussions.
Conexon presented their findings to the full Board on 2/14/2017 and continued to work with the
ad hoc throughout the project.

Given the interest in a written business plan, Staff engaged with Conexon to transform their
original presentation to more of a written format, similar to CTC’s, and included it in the packet
for Board review. Staff has also reached out to CTC to get an updated feasibility study proposal,
which is also included in the packet for the Boards consideration. The CTC proposal is estimated
at $88,500 with a twelve-week completion date.

The FTTP Project is considered a major undertaking for the utility not only in its cost, but
operationally. Considering its magnitude the board may desire another independent study be
conducted before moving forward with approval of construction. As mentioned in the prior agenda
item, this plan will be simultaneously conducted while also bidding the engineering, design,
construction, etc.

Staff recommends employing CTC to perform a new business plan as identified in their proposal,
which it attached. If the board agrees with staff’s recommendation, the following motion would

be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES FROM CTC, SUBJECT TO REVIEW AS TO FORM BY
GENERAL COUNSEL.

48



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manager
Date: February 6, 2018
Subject: Project Authorization Request — Substation Circuit Exits Replacement

Staff is requesting authorization from the Board to proceed with development, design and
construction to replace substation underground circuit exits with 750kCM 15kV copper cable in full
conduit. Exits to be replaced are at Barlow Rd (four circuits: BW22, BW23, BW30, BW31),
Parsons Rd (four circuits: PC21, PC22, PC23, PC30), and Cass Rd substations (four circuits: CD 21,
CD23, CD31, CD22). This work was identified in the 2016 Electric Distribution Study performed
by GRP Engineering, Inc. and has been in the TCL&P Six Year Capital Improvements Plan.

Staff recommends Board approval of the project authorization for the Substation Circuit Exits
Replacement Project and seeks the necessary Board approvals for expenditures in order to complete
the project by August 31, 2018.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY p

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE AS PRESENTED THE SUBSTATION CIRCUIT EXITS
REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT CONSTRUCTION
BIDS AND MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF
APPROVAL AFTER DESIGN COMPLETION.

49



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

Project Name: Substation Exits Replacement 2018
Budgeted in CIP: Yes

Dollar Amount Budgeted: $560,000

Date of Board Presentation: February 13, 2018

Objective: Target Completion date of August 31, 2018
Project Deseription:

Replacement of underground circuit exits at Barlow Rd (four circuits: BW22, BW23, BW30,
BW31), Parsons Rd (four circuits: PC21, PC22, PC23, PC30), and Cass Rd substation (four
circuits: CD 21, CD23, CD31, CD22) with 750kCM 15kV copper cable in full conduit.

Project Purpose and Necessity:

While the breakers, switches, and overhead cable for each of these circuits are rated at 600A, the
existing circuit exit cable is rated at 500A, making them a weak link for future growth and use in
emergencies. The cable is also 30+ years old and approaching the projected end of life. This
project is to replace aging cable and terminations and to bring these circuits up to full carrying
capacity of 600A. These circuit exits are identified in the TCL&P Distribution System Study
done by GRP in 2016.

Project Benefits:

Tncreased capacity for all 12 circuits, which is useful for growth and emergencies. Replaces
aging cable and terminations, which is beneficial for reliability. Having the cables installed in
conduit will allow for significantly quicker replacement as needed in the future, which minimizes
either outages or the length of time for abnormal system configuration.

Alternatives:

Delaying the replacement of the circuits would risk prolonged outages or reduce the options for
switching load for emergencies or planned work, particularly as load increases.

Timeline:

Project Kickoff February 19, 2018
Design Complete April 11,2018
Bid Opening May 2, 2018
Construction Start May 21, 2018
Construction End August 31, 2018

50



TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

£

(EsT. 1212
LES T plialidy

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST
Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance. Bonding will not be required.
Revenues:

There will be no additional revenues.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

There are no reductions in O&M expenses in the near future. However, a cable termination
failure could result in expensive O&M repair costs.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board approve the Substation Exits Replacement project as presented
and to authorize staff to seek competitive bids for construction.

Budget:

Professional Services: $52,000
Material: $185,000
Labor: $267,000
Contingency: $56,000
Total: $560,000

51



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13,2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

| EST. 1912

To: Light & Power Board

From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manager

Date: February 5, 2018

Subject: Substation Circuit Exits Replacement — Professional Engineering Services

Attached is a proposal from GRP Engineering, Inc. (“GRP”) regarding professional engineering
services relating to the Substation Circuit Exits Replacement project for your consideration of
approval. Staff’s recommendation to approve entering into an agreement for these services is
contingent upon Board approval of the project, which was submitted for approval at the February 13,
2018 Board meeting.

GRP will provide design engineering setvices, contract administration, and project management
services for the circuit exit replacements for Barlow, Cass and Parsons Substations from beginning
through project completion. The following are the engineering services proposed lump sum costs:

Substation Fee

Barlow Substation $11,000
Cass Road Substation $12,000
Parsons Substation $ 8,000

The Contract/Project Administration services are proposed at an hourly rate not to exceed the
following maximum total:

Substation Fee

Barlow Substation $7,000
Cass Road Substation $8,000
Parsons Substation $6,000

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

52



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13,2018

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY s
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH GRP ENGINEERING, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES AT A LUMP SUM FEE OF $31,000, AND FOR
CONTRACT/PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AT AN HOURLY FEE WITH A NOT TO
EXCEED TOTAL OF $21,000 RELATING TO THE SUBSTATION CIRCUIT EXIT
REPLACEMENT PROJECT. AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL
COUNSEL.

53



GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

January 8, 2018

Mr. Daren Dixon

Operations Manager
Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings St.

Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Substation Exit Cable Replacement
Engineering Services Proposal

Dear Daren:

GRP Engineering, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal to Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) for
engineering services associated with the Substation Exit Cable Replacement project. This project is being
undertaken to replace aging cable, increase the ampacity of each circuit exit to full 600A capacity, and
replace failing cable terminations. The scope of this project includes installation of conduit and new
750kCM 15kV CU cable on four circuits at Cass Road Substation (CD21, CD23, CD30 & CD31), all four
circuits at Barlow Substation, and four circuits at Parsons Substations (PC21, PC22, PC23, & PC30).
Estimated total project cost is $560,000.

Although this project will be combined for bidding and construction purposes, all costs will be separated
for each substation. This engineering services proposal is also separated by substation, although it is based
on award of the full project. GRP Engineering’s understanding is that all work will be contracted out for
this project. One construction contract will be prepared covering installation of both conduit and cable,
with costs broken out by substation. GRP Engineering will complete design, assist with material
procurement, prepare and process one construction contract, perform construction staking, observation,
and contract administration. Proposed schedule is to complete construction by August 31, 2018.

Substation Exit Cable Replacement Engineering Design Phase
e Project administration (maintain correspondence & meeting minutes.)

Project planning & control (design schedules & cost estimates.)

Project kickoff meeting with TCL&P staff.

Field inventory of cable endpoints including risers, cabinets, and/or switchgear.

Complete design of the 13.8kV substation underground exits including conduit layout, site
restoration, and riser assemblies.

Design underground system to meet all applicable standards including those of the current edition
of the National Electric Safety Code (NESC)

Prepare new construction and removal staking sheets.

Prepare underground layout, detail, and site restoration drawings.

Coordinate design with Parsons Switching Station project.

Two (2) design review meetings with TCL&P staff.

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont Ml 49306 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 231.439.9698 F: 231.439.9698



Prepare construction assembly drawings meeting TCL&P standards.

Assist TCL&P with material procurement including bidding, evaluation and award.

Prepare new construction and removal unit lists for contractor bidding.

Prepare construction specifications.

Preparation of one (1) construction contract plus assistance with bid and award. Construction
contract will be prepared so that contractor costs will be separated by each substation.

Printing & shipping of all required construction drawings sets.

o Prepare and process all required permit applications.

GRP Engineering, Inc. proposes to complete the Design Phase engineering services for the
Substation Exit Cable Replacement Project for the lump sum fees listed below. All fees include
expenses and all subcontracted services.

Substation Fee
Barlow Substation $11,000
Cass Road Substation $12,000
Parsons Substation $ 8,000

Substation Exit Cable Replacement Contract Administration Phase

Prepare construction contract including contractor’s bid, bonds and insurance.

Attendance at three (3) preconstruction meetings, one per substation.

Construction staking of all underground conduit centerlines, padmount equipment and riser poles.

On-site representation during conduit installation at critical times.

On-site representation during electrical cable installation at critical times.

Coordination between TCL&P, construction contractors, and other affected projects and parties.

Monitor and verify construction compliance with engineering drawings and specifications and all

NESC requirements.

e Preparation of monthly progress reports, which will include contractor performance and any work
quality issues.

o Final inventory and preparation of punch lists and energization release forms for the new 13.8kV
underground circuit exits system.

e Process all contractor invoicing and change orders (if required.)
Prepare all necessary contract close-out documents.

e Provide record drawings including two (2) bound sets and files in AutoCAD 2018 format.

GRP Engineering, Inc. proposes to complete the Contract Administration Phase services for the
Substation Exit Cable Replacement Project on an hourly basis for the maximum fees listed below.
All fees include expenses and all subcontracted services.

Substation Fee
Barlow Substation $7,000
Cass Road Substation $8,000
Parsons Substation $6,000

Should additional services be required outside the scope of this proposal, we will complete those tasks on
an hourly basis based on the attached rate sheet. All services performed for Traverse City Light & Power
within this scope will be billed on a monthly basis and all costs will be separated per substation.

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont Ml 49306 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.9698 F: 231.439.9698

55



Deliverables
Deliverables will include:
e Substation construction plan & clevation view drawings (24°x36”) in AutoCad & pdf format.
Construction bid documents & specifications (8.5”x11”) in pdf format.
New construction and removal unit list (8.5”x11”) in MSExcel & pdf format.
Material list (8.5”x11”") in MSExcel & pdf format.
Record drawings in the formats listed above.

Proposed Project schedule:

Project Kickoff February 19, 2018
Design Complete April 11,2018
Bid Opening May 2, 2018
Construction Start May 21, 2018
Construction End August 31, 2018

This proposal is based on award of engineering for all three substations, TCL&P providing most recent
substation layout drawings in AutoCAD format, and does not include survey or easement acquisition
services.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to being of service to you. Please
contact me should you have any questions regarding this proposal.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

WFD Plecdedd

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
President

Enclosures

cc: Traverse City Light & Power
Mr. Tim Arends

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont Ml 49306 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 231.439.9698 F: 231.439.9698



GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
HOURLY BILLING RATES

Engineer
Employee Title Level Hourly Rate Range
Senior Project Manager 8 $150 - $180
Project Manager 7 $130 - $150
Senior Engineer 6 $115-3$130
Project Engineer 4-5 $105- $110
Engineer 2-3 $85 - $105
Entry Level Engineer 1 $65 - $85
Engineering Technician $45 - %70
Engineering Support $35 - $50
Administrative Support $45 - 560

Expenses will be invoiced at cost including, but not limited to, mileage, meals, lodging,
printing and reproduction.

All subcontracted services will be invoiced at cost, with no additional markup.

Rates are valid through December 31, 2018



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Daren Dixon, Operations Manager

Date: February 6, 2018

Subject: Project Authorization Request — Parsons Switching Station

Staff is requesting authorization from the Board to proceed with development, design and
construction to construct a 69kV switchyard plus new transformer high and low side switching
equipment, as well as a control house at the existing Parsons Substation in order to improve
reliability for customers fed from Parsons and Barlow Substations. This work was identified in the
2016 Electric Distribution Study performed by GRP Engineering, Inc. and has been in the TCL&P
Six Year Capital Improvements Plan.

Staff recommends Board approval of the project authorization for the Parsons Switch Station Project
and seeks the necessary Board approvals for expenditures in order to complete the project by January
1,2019.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE AS PRESENTED THE PARSONS SWITCH STATION
PROJECT AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT CONSTRUCTION BIDS AND
MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL
AFTER DESIGN COMPLETION.

58



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST <) LIGHT & POWER

Project Name: Parsons Switch Station
Budgeted in CIP: Yes

Dollar Amount Budgeted: $1,560,000

Date of Board Presentation: February 13, 2018

Objective: Target Completion date of January 1, 2019
Project Description:

Install 2-69kVdeadend structures, 2-69kV breakers, 7-69kV disconnect switches and associated
bus work, 2-69kV circuit switchers, 3-motor operators for 15kV switches, fence and ground grid
expansion, a new control house, control panels, battery system and all associated protective
relaying.

Project Purpose and Necessity:

To improve reliability for all customers fed from Barlow and Parsons Substations by providing
automated switching on the 69kV transmission system from Barlow Substation to Hammond
Substation in the event of transmission line faults and by updating transformer protection to
current standards.

Project Benefits:

Minimizes the risk of large-scale outages due to transmission line faults for Barlow and Parsons
Substations. Increased speed and efficiency when switching the transmission line. Upgrading the
transformer protection which will extend the life of the transformer. The upgraded protection
also eliminates the possibility of customer equipment being damaged via a lost phase.

Alternatives:

Continue to rely on manually switching the transmission feed in event of a transmission line fault
or required system switching.

Timeline:

Project Kickoff February 19, 2018
Design Complete July 9, 2018

Bid Opening August 7, 2018
Construction Award August 14, 2018
Construction Start September 10, 2018
Project Substantially Complete January 1, 2019
Project Closeout February 1, 2019

59



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

Financing Method:

Cash from the TCL&P electric fund balance. Bonding will not be required.

Revenues:

No additional revenues are forecast; however, some amount of revenue would be lost in the
event of an outage requiring manual switching or required system switching., The amount of this
is dependent upon the time year, the amount of customer load, and the time it takes to switch.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

Future maintenance issues for added facilities would be offset at least in part by automation of
switching. This is dependent upon the potential for outage occurances.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that Board approve the Parsons Switch Station Project authorization and
necessary expenditures in order to improve reliability for its customers.

Budget:

Professional Services $188,000
Materials $350,000
Labor $866,000
Contingency $156.000

$1,560,000

60




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Daren Dixon, Operations Managet  —————o
Date: February 6, 2018
Subject: Parsons Switch Station — Professional Engineering Services

The Parsons Switch Station Project is being undertaken to improve reliability to customers fed from
Barlow and Parsons Substations by installing a new switchyard and control house at Parsons
Substation. Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the engineering design and project
management for this Project and received bids as follows:

Vendor Price
GRP Engineering, Inc. $188,000
Power Systems Engineering, Inc. $196,816

Staff recommends that the TCL&P Board acceptance of GRP’s bid. The recommended bid is in line
with projected project costs. Staff’s recommendation to approve entering into an agreement for these
services is contingent upon Board approval of the project, which was submitted for approval at the
February 13, 2018 Board meeting,.

If the Board concurs, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY 5
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH GRP ENGINEERING, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT AT A LUMP SUM FEE
OF $104,000, AND FOR CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION, START-UP AND TESTING
AT AN HOURLY FEE WITH A NOT TO EXCEED TOTAL OF $84,000 RELATING TO
THE PARSONS SWITCH STATION PROJECT. AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO
FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

61



Jasuisug wANsAs ‘puesuieyd Auog

g\m&,uﬁ

Jamod 3 s Ay asianel]

"peal pue pauado Apiqnd asem uiaiay paiejngel spiq 3y ‘STOZ ‘9 Atenigad ‘Aepsany uo swi (20} NJO0:Z 38 38yl AJIad 01 SISyl

00°9T8'96T ) ETLES IM ‘Buouo

Aempeoug "M ZEST
"Ju| ‘BuuaguiSul walsAs 1smogd
pig mo7 00'000°88T S 0LLEY IIN “Aa¥sorad
1935 Aeg 65t
*2U) ‘BulaauIBul 4y

SHIVINGY : el /3014d 419 3SVE YOLOVHLINOD V1oL | : d3iaaig

juawadeuey 1al01d R BusasuiBul uonelS YIUMS SUosIBd  awep 39afold

w04 uone|ngey pig . ;
Jamod g 1ySi7 A asianed ) HIMOL R LHOIT

ALllID 3S¥3IAVHEL

62

b



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

Date: February 13,2018

Subject: Presentation of the Fiber Fund 2018-19 Budget

Enclosed is the Fiber Fund and related cash flow for the fiscal year end June 30, 2019.

BUDGET

Revenues have significantly increased in the projected revenues relating to the new fiber
connections for the Security Camera System at each substation in the approximate amount of
$50,000 annually. Budgeted revenues have increased based on the new fiber connection charges
to Traverse City Light & Power and the City for $46,200 each for the Automated Metering
Infrastructure Project (“AMI”). Initial capital costs required to modify the dark fiber system to
operate the AMI System for $140,000 is recorded under the Reimbursement revenue line item.

Professional services increased relating to the Fiber to the Premise Project (“FTTP”) Business Plan
engagement commencing during the fiscal year and with completion anticipated in the fiscal year
end June 30, 2019. (The final budget will be modified to incorporate the decision made by the
Board on the business plan earlier in the meeting).

This budget does not reflect any activity relating to FTTP. Once the project is in the financing and
construction phase, this activity will be reflected in the balance sheet primarily through bonds/loan
payable, cash and fixed assets. If a bond were to be issued, any bond issuance costs that need to
be expensed in the current year as required by GASB 65 or any operating revenue/expense
expected to be received or incurred, will be presented as a budget adjustment to the Board once
the information is available.

CASH FLOW

The projected six-year cash flow represents inflationary increases in fiber revenue and related
expenses unless projected numbers are available. One-time expenses such as the professional
services related to the FTTP Business Plan are removed from future year’s inflationary increases.
Additionally, staff has included planned repayments to the Electric Fund for the initial investments
into the Fiber Fund with repayment to be completed by year 2022-23.

63



Traverse City Light & Power
Fiber Optics Fund
2018-19 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 17/18 FY 18/19
Actual Actual Budgeted Projected Recommended
Operating revenues g H
Charges for services $ 278,376 $ 279,746 | § 319,000 $ 352,000 3 458,000
Other 129 - - - | -
Total Operating Revenues 278,505 279,746 | 319,000 352,000 458,000
Operating expenses i
Salaries and wages 44,601 56,984 81,500 63,000 64,900
Fringe benefits 35,081 49,451 | 93,900 68,950 | 70,250
Office & operation supplies 1,829 1,273 | 1,000 1,500 | 2,000
WIFI operations and maintenance 28,678 30,488 29,800 31,400 | 32,100
Hardware and software - 5,850 5,400 5,400 | 5,750
Professional services 1,727 24,026 - 44,250 | 44,250
Legal services 2,475 2,280 1,500 2,500 | 2,500
City fee 13,932 13,999 | 15,975 18,000 | 23,000
Professional development - = 2,500 2,500 | 2,500
Insurance - 435 1,000 1,000 | 1,000
Repair and maintenance 11,171 2,999 20,000 16,000 16,000
Vehicle rental 8,974 8,026 13,000 10,000 10,000
Miscellaneous 43 - 100 | 100
Depreciation expense 143,383 144,630 | 145,000 145,000 | 146,000
Total operating expenses 291,851 340,484 3 410,575 409,600 '1 420,350
B i
Operating income (loss) (13,346) (60,738) | (91,575) (57,600) | 37,650
' L
Non-operating revenues (expenses) [
Reimbursements 54,127 33,525 | 53,400 68,900 | 177,800
Interest revenue 125 231 | 500 500 | 1,130
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - (3,897 | - - -
Total non operating revenues 54,252 29,859 | 53,900 69,400 | 178,930
Other financing transfers {
Transfer out (175,000) (125,000) (125,000) (125,000) | (175,000)
|
Change in net position §  (134,0949) $ (155,879) 8 (162,675) § (1 13,200)!- $ 41,580

64



8L6°TE9 SIVIEP S €69CHF S 689IVE § P98GYT S ¥8TTOT  § STTOLL aouE|eq SJUSUIRSIAL] % YSED SUISO[)
_ | _ _ _
£69°Sh¥ 689°IFE  § 689°TFE  $ p98'6PT S PBTTOT S 8TTOIL S 860°60T JouE|eq SHULAURSIAU] % Yse) sutwadQ
987°L8T LTL 06 ¥00'F0T ST8°16 08S‘LY 950°76 (0.8°86) (-) 352 snidang Mopyse)
£¥6°TEE ySI‘61Y 96EVTY Z0L°60% 0S€°685 009v0¥ 9II‘LEE sjuawied [e10L
L8°C8 000°SL1 000°SL1 000°SLI 000°SLI 000°SZ1 000°5Z1 pun,j OLIo9[ 03 J3JSUBLL
- - - - 000°071 000761 79791 sjueuISeAU] [epde))
9YL'YE S90'vE L6E'EE THL'TE 001°T€ 00%°1€ 887°0€ asuadxy [41M
TTEYIT 611°012 666°S0T 096°10T 0ST'TYT 00Z°€€T 99€°91 osuodx JoqLy
SJUIWARJ
8TZ'0ZS 116°60S 00+°8IS LTST0S 0£69£9 959°96¥ 9PT'8ET §1d1239 [€I0L
8 . . . B 9ST'SL (9sT°sL) S9[qeAI0001/S3]qeAed JO SUILL
08L°T 800°C 170°C 19S°1 0€1°1 00S 1€C SNUIASY JS2IU] - SANUGASY SueIddQ UON
STF 1€ 00¥' 1€ 968°6¢€ 9Z8°ZE 008°LLI 00689 STSEE SJUSURSINUIIY - SANULASY SuljeIad( UON
€098y €0S'9Ly  $|€0S9Ly  $|09T°L9F  $ | 000°8Sy  $ [ 000ZTSE  § | 9VL'6LT 10q1 - SAIIAISS IO SOBIBYD
sydraoayg

65



TRAVERSE CITY

URGHT & POWER

2016-2017 Annual Report | 1

66



67



Our Message

raverse City Light and Power’s (TCL&P’s) 104 year commitment to the Traverse
TCity community has and will continue to be at the forefront. Our mission is simple,

provide the community and customers the public power benefits of “safety, lower
rates, high reliability, local control and exceptional customer service.”

What We Have Accomplished

This past year, TCL&P has continued to place considerable focus on upgrading our electric
system; creating greater efficiencies, and identifying opportunities to take the utility to
the next level in technological advances. All of which have remained congruent with our
Strategic Plan, and the overall vision of the utility.

TCL&P’s larger project focus for the 2016-2017 fiscal year included:

¢ Beginning the overhaul and upgrade of the entire BW-31 Circuit. This electric line
and assoclated infrastructure is the power source for all customers located east of
Railroad Avenue, south of Eighth Street and the base of Old Mission Peninsula.

e Completing the Orchard Heights Overhead-to-Underground Conversion Project that
involved undergrounding an inaccessible overhead distribution line with the end
goal to reduce outages, energy losses and maintenance costs.

o Successfully securing the approvals necessary to look further into providing Fiber to
the Premise (FTTP) to all TCL&P customers.

o Seeking bids and selecting a vendor to upgrade all TCL&P electric meters and City of
Traverse City water meters by the end of 2018.

Our Continued Commitment

As we look to the future, the utility will remain focused on identifying and implementing
new technology and performing the necessary upgrades to ensure that your system
maintains its high level of reliability.

Our focus will expand with new initiatives such as strengthening our renewable generation
portfolio. The utility will be assisting the City of Traverse City on achieving its 100%
renewable energy goal by 2020, while at the same time seeking out projects that will
benefit all ratepayers in compliance with the state mandate required by the energy
legislation passed in December 2016.

Through all this, TCL&P and its dedicated workforce will continue to provide the customers
and community the public power benefits of a consumer owned, not-for-profit, municipal
utility that is innovative and forward thinking in a fiscally responsible manner.

Jan Geht
Board Chairperson

Timothy Arends
Executive Director

2016-2017 Annual Report | 3

68



Our Year

Safety

For the 2016-2017 fiscal year the Safety Committee, comprised of both union and
non-union employees, met six times throughout the year, with an additional eight

utility wide safety training sessions held ranging from pole top rescue to CPR and First

Aid.

Again this year, the utility had one minor lost time accident due to a back strain that
resulted in one lost work day. Employees will continue to discuss and investigate
safety related issues to ensure safe work practices continue to be a number one
priority.

Employees

TCL&P employs thirty-eight full-time employees, of which twenty-six are

union and twelve are non-union. In fiscal year 2016-2017, the utility had two new
hires and two retirements, along with five employees recognized for their years of
service ranging from five years up to thirty years.

Additionally, TCL&P successfully negotiated a three year contract with the Utility
Workers Union of America {UWUA), Local 295.

Financial

The utility continues to be financially healthy while providing the seventh lowest
retail rates in the State of Michigan (EIA 2016 data). The utility developed LED
rates for the Street Lighting and Private Area Lighting tariff rates in conjunction with
updating the utility’s High Pressure Sodium rates.

The average purchase power cost in the prior fiscal year was $63.90 and increased

slightly to $65.30 in the current fiscal year, which is 67% of the utility’s expenditures.

Generation

The utility continues to work in conjunction with the Michigan Public Power Agency
(MPPA) on seasonal purchases, firm energy contract purchases, developing a long-
term capacity purchase program, proposing future purchase power entitlements/
projects and assisting in developing a renewable energy program.

The City of Traverse City pledged through a resolution on December 19, 2016 to

power all City operations with renewable power by 2020. The utility is working
closely with the City to make sure they achieve their goal of 100% renewables.

4 | Traverse City Light & Power

e

69



Reliability

The utility invested approximately $179,578 in tree trimming which equated to 6 road
miles and responded to 190 customer generated requests. A propetly maintained
right of way significantly reduces the length and occurrence of outages. The utility’s

ASAl index (total of customer hours available divided by total customer hours
demanded) in 2017 was 99.993%.

| \ \ This year the utility was able to complete a major rebuild on another segment of 69kV
| transmission line from LaFranier Road and Hammond Road to the Barlow substation.
This improved capacity and reliability for the east side of our service area.

Technology

There has been significant technology projects, with the expectation this will not
change as the use of technology streamlines and makes processes more effective and
efficient.

Projects that commenced throughout the year included: a new work order asset
management program, new GIS applications for viewing and collecting field asset
information, updated server infrastructure, new phone provider with advanced
routing capabilities, and installation of new security cameras at all locations where
critical assets reside. A successful Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) bid was
completed and approved, and deployment is currently underway and expected to
be finished by late 2018. Additionally, the utility was working with stakeholders at
both the State and local level to obtain feedback on launching a Fiber to the Premise
Project (FTTP) within Traverse City. The Board voted to add an FTTP project to the CIP
and formed an ad-hoc to discuss the project further. A study session is expected to
take place the beginning of 2018.

Energy Waste Reduction

Through customer engagement in the utility’s Energy Waste Reduction programs,
TCL&P saved an additional 2.9 million in kWh's. This, combined with the extra savings
beyond the state mandated goal from 2016, put us over our goal once again! While

a majority of the savings came from switching old inefficient lighting to LEDs, other
avenues such as appliances, HVAC, and even refrigeration upgrades have hecome more
popular. Our residential and commercial customers are becoming more educated in
simple ways to cut back their electrical consumption, starting with the most basic idea
of shutting the lights off. In 2016-2017, Venture North, in collaboration with TCL&P,

i S == gave out over $75,000 in 0% loan funds to local businesses for their participation in

? ' e | our Energy Waste Reduction program.

Going forward, TCL&P will continue to re-shape its programs to meet changing
and new technologies as they emerge, including bringing the entire Energy Waste
Reduction program in-house starting January 1, 2018.

2016-2017 Annual Report | 5

70



Balance Sheet

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Customer, less allowances of $319,084

for uncollectible accounts (Light and Power Fund)

Accrued interest

Taxes

Other
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Tatal current assets

Non-current assets
Investments
Accounts receivables

Other postemployment benefit asset

Long-term advances - due from primary government

Land and land improvements
Construction in progress

Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total non-current asscts
‘Total assets

Deferred outflows

Deferred outflows of resources - Pensions

6 | Traverse City Light & Power

f

$ 5,574,4697

3,403,100
52,656
4,806
304,007
1,600,534
92,136

11,031,708

13,951,707
1,427,323
1,643,502

285

1,079,419
2,098,071

56,453,337

76,653,644

87,685,352

3,021,899

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue

Due to primary government

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences

Net pension liability

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows

Deferred inflows of resources-Pensions

Net position
Invested in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 2,035,637
617,893
97,447
14,815
243,138

3,008,930

161,944

12, 964,744

16,135,618

774,212

59,630,827

14,166,594

§ 73,797,421

1



Revenue and Expenses

FYE 2017 FYE 2016

Operating revenues
Where Does it GO? Charges for services $ 31,444,865 $ 31,944,489
MISO income 3,123,621 3,483,052
Other 224,791 381,008
Total operating revenues 34,793,277 35,808,549

Operating expenses
Generation 22,132,569 23,070,005
Distribution 3,800,057 4,424 951
Transmission 444,502 421,135
4¢ General Administration Customer accounting 501,210 571,278
1¢ Public Service Public service 466,506 671,545
1¢ Customer Accounting General administration 1,258,666 986,037
1¢ Fiber/WIFI Fiber 150,932 105,858
WIFI 30,488 28,678
Other 73,965 62,001
City fee 1,743,138 1,798,832
Depreciation 2,656,157 2,397,571
Total operating expenses 33,258,190 34,543,891
= o Operating income 1,535,087 1,264,658

Commercial
48% Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
' - Rental income 104,746 93,247
'“‘_g’f;é'a' ! Reimbursements 270,301 350,371
Interest income 204,246 289,116
Change in fair value of investments (247,867) 59,202
Loss on sale of assets (9,862) (355,965)
Total nonoperating revenue 321,564 435,971
-
Wh ere Do e S It Income before transfers 1,856,651 1,700,629
come From? Transfers
; : Transfers in 125,000 175,000
 Residential Ivansfecs out (125,000) (175,000)
Total transfers - =
Change in net position 1,856,651 1,700,629
Net position, beginning of year 71,940,770 70,240,141
Net position, end of year § 73,797,421 $ 71,940,770
‘Street Lights
& other
1%

2016-2017 Annual Report | 7

72



Rate Comparison

AVERAGE PRICE (CENTS/KWH)

INFORMATION OBTAINED FROM EIA - 2016 DATA

Wisconsin Electric Power Co
City of Zeeland - (M)
Wisconsin Public Service Corp
Coldwater Board of Public Util
Alpena Power Co

City of Escanaba

City of Holland

City of Traverse City - (MI)
Indiana Michigan Power Co
Hillsdale Board of Public Wks |
City of Petoskey - (M)
Northern States Power Co
City of South Haven - (M) |
City of Niles - (MI)

City of Gladstone |

City of Marshall - (M) |

DTE Electric Company |

Cloverland Electric Co-op
Thumb Electric Coop of Mich |
City of Sturgis

Wyandotte Municipal Serv Comm |
City of Bay City - (M)
Consumers Energy Co
Cherryland Electric CoopInc |
Great Lakes Energy Coop
Midwest Energy Cooperative J
City of Lansing - (M)

City of Grand Haven - (MI)
Village of L'Anse - (MI) |

City of Marquette - (MI)
Tri-County Electric Coop
Presque Isle Elec & Gas Coop
City of Crystal Falls

City of Norway

City of Negaunee

Upper Peninsula Power Company |
Alger-Delta Coop Electric Assn
Village of Baraga - (Ml}

8 | Traverse City Light & Power

SRR i |

/3




Financial, Operating & Other Ratios

(Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014)

== — Industry
Ratio Description 2017 2016 - 2015 2014 Average
APPA
FINANCIAL RATIOS 10,000-20,000
Revenue per KWH* Customers
* All Retail Customers S 0.095($ 0.098(S 0.109($ 0.101 S 0.092
* Residential Customers S 0.1086| S - 0.109] $ 0.118| S 0.109 S 0.104
* Commercial Customers S 0.104| S 0.108| $ 0.118($ 0.108 S 0.095
* Industrial Customers S 0.077| S 0.080| S 0.092(58 0.087 S 0.071]
Debt to Total Assets N/A N/A N/A| N/A 0.234
Operating Ratio 1.043 1.082 0.953 0.997 0.863
Current Ratio 3.66 5.37 10.64 8.96 2.65
Net income per revenue dollar S 0.053| $ 0.052| § 0.120/ $ 0.114 S 0.073
Uncollectible accounts per revenue dollar S 0.0002| 5 0.0001] $ 0.0011| 5 0.0009) S 0.0017
OPERATING RATIOS
Retail customers per employee 381 341 330 331 399
Total OM expense per KWH sold S 0.092| $ 0.099 S 0.096| $ 0.093 S 0.079
Total OM expense per retail customer S 658(S 731$ 652|S 593 5 400
Total power supply expense per kWH sold | $ 0.067[ $ 0.070/ $ 0.070/ $ 0.070 S 0.065
Purchased power cost per KWH S 0.065[ $ 0.065[ $ 0.070] $ 0.075 $ 0.061
Retail customers per meter reader 6,283 5,113 4,986 4,967 5,769
Distribution OM expense per
retail customer S 302|5 3465 283|$ 270 S 155
Distribution expense per
circuit mile S 10,857/ $ 12,643| 8 10,088 $ 9,588 $ 4,840
Customer accounting, service and
sales expense per retail customer S 400 45| S 46($ 39 S 48
Administrative and general
expense per retail customer 5 1001 S 778 67|$ 61 [ 143
OTHER RATIOS
OSHA Incidence Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 2
Energy loss percentage 2.23% 6.93% 0.88% -7.12% 3.66%
System Load Factor 59.72% 53.84% 49.75% 47.13% 56.10%

2016-2017 Annual Report | 9

74




10

Traverse City Light & Power

By The Numbers

2016 Calendar Year
Energy Consumption

Market $730,267
38,992 MWH
11%

Bilateral Contracts

- $5,004,254 Campbell #3 Coal
128,064 MWH $3,524,334
37% 54,313 MWH
16%
Bell River Coal
43,345,304
54,796 MWH
M72 Wind Turbine io%
$29,250
417 MWH
0%

Grainger & Orchard Hills Landfill Gas

Heritage Staney Corners Wind $830,174
$2,881,568 Combustion Turbine Natural Gas ~ 2+166 MWH
24,858 MWH 44,729,224 3%
7% 33,792 MWH
10%

residential and commercial
customers.

7_ 3 L% P L
= miles of overfiead and years in operation.
‘underground electrk line.

A ; s
jurisdictions séer ‘ cluding ty of Traverse City and
my ar ninsula Townships.

75



Our Board.....c..

Jan Geht, Board Chairperson Ross Hammersley, Board Member

Tim Werner, City Commissioner Patrick McGuire, Board Member

Jeff Palisin, Board Vice-Chairperson John Taylor, Board Member

Amy Shamroe, City Commissioner Marty Colburn, City Manager (Ex-Officio)

Our Administrative Team

Timothy Arends, Executive Director Daren Dixon, Operations Manager

Jennifer St. Amour, Administrative Assistant Mark Watson, Field Engineering Supervisor

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller Tony Chartrand, System Engineer

Kelli Schroeder, Manager of Human Resources & Rodney Solak, Line Superintendent
Communications Stephanie Tvardek, Scheduling & Operations

Scott Menhart, Manager of Technology & Coatdinator

Telecommunications Jacob Hardy, Energy Technician

Gabe Talaga, Computer Systems Specialist

2016-2017 Annual Report |

11

76



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 13, 2018

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: February 7, 2018

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the second quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund

As of December 31, 2017 (50% through the fiscal year), operating revenues - sales are 47.37% of budgeted
operating revenues. Residential, commercial and industrial sales have declined over the prior year, attributed to
the milder summer than last except for the warm-up at the end of September.

Total operating expenses are at 46.72% of budget year-to-date, with purchase power costs at 46.77%. Other
categories with lower than anticipated expenditures to date are transmission costs at 37.79% because of expenses
not yet incurred such as the joint pole use agreement annual costs with Consumers Energy (occur in January).
Along with public service costs are at 39.30% relating to funds not expended for the energy waste reduction
program.

Net income through the sccond quarter is $837,741, which is approximately $8,320 decrease over the prior year.

Cash flow statement shows approximately $2,761,229 expended in capital assets, primarily for the Cherry
Capital Runway Expansion Project ($400,000 of costs to be reimbursed by Cherry Capital Airport), BW-31
Circuit Rebuild, Critical and Large Customer Project, M-72 Solar Project (costs reimbursed by Heritage) and the
Cherryland Exchange Project.

Fiber Fund

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are 52.66% of budgeted operating revenues while expenses are 44.65% of budget
year-to-date. WIFI Operations and Maintenance is at 80.97% of budget relating to Merit Network expenses
incurred the first quarter relating for the WIFI system internet feed, a primary expense of this line item. The
Fund has a net loss or change in net position of $(7,428).

17




TLE'TO0EL § uopsod J9u B0, +OP 68161 $ SIUIWISIAUI PUE YSLD [BI0L
66L°8SE €L pajaLIsaluf) Te68 100t MO[IINO PALIBJAC]
TLSTOL'GS $1055€ [B11ded Ul pajsaAu]
uomsod 3N LSF'1SL'98 §1955% [€30L
SOL'BIF' 19 $1ISSE JUDLIND-UOU [EJO ],
ZITYLL MOQUI PALIRJOd  LGLSLLES 19u ‘parerdadap Suisq siasse [Eade)
[ $s9180ad ur uononnsuUC)
TLL'LEG'ST SIp[IqeEl] €10 G1H°6L0'1 sjuswaAoIdw pue| pue pue]
$8T JuswIaaod Arewnd woly anp - $30UBAPE ULIAFU0]
LSI'ETI'EL SINLIqRI] W) Fuo| [¥I0L, gHSSTIL T 1955% J1j2uaq JuswAojdwasod 1L2yI0
SJ955E JUILINI-UON
FrLYO6TL Aprqer) uoisuad 19N
CIH'8S1 sooussqe paresusdwio]) sLTeesT $J955€ JUILIND [BJ0],
SII[IGEL WAd)-3uo]
LLS'HS sosuadxe predaag
SI9VIST SIIQRI] JUILIND [BI0], 0S£°S15°1 SILIOIUIAU]
TEL'TLY'T EElile]
£62°Z1 SIXEL
9z0'911 uawuIaAod Arewnd 03 ang 95978 152193UL PINIIDY
. soouasqe pajesuadwo)) 00’78 T (pun 1smod pue WSIT) SJUNO22E 9[qUI[[0oUN 10]
000°02¢ INUIAII PIIBIUL) €7 0TES JO SoouBMO][€ SSI[ “IDWO0ISN])
01686 susodap Jowosny $91qBAIR0SY
€P1°TH9 $UI[IQBI] I9YI0 puE sasuadxe paruooy SSI'TSE I SJUSWISIAU]
95 LEY'T $ 21qefied sjunoooy I1STLEL'Y g sjuaeAmba yseo pue ysed
SIUIQRI] JUILIND) S1ISSE JUALINT)
NOILISOd LIN ANV STILITIEVIT SLASSV
L10T “1€ AIWIDAA

NOLLISOd LIN 40 INTWILY.LS

AN DTALDATH

(ueSIgarAL ‘A1) 3513AEL, Jo A1 913 jo puq) Juduodwo)) y)

YHIMAO4 ANV LHOI'T ALID HSYTAVIL

/8



Y%Ll 9 SELESITL S9L9LL'LL 005'0LL"ET (LZp'9zT) 161 ErELL SOL'9LLLL 6L0'STL 0£0°01L'L 601'558'1 505uadxa Jomod aseyamg
%lyTL 964016 $0S'63ET 000°00€°E 815°CT 936'99€°T 705'63€'C (393°0L) 856'19€ 060°16T SRLAU0D (BTG
%593y [£2°505 69L'9LY 000'086 ossLLy 69L'9LY 1993 169'SL TSE'YS 569 [[gPueT
%9L'3r 20TLY6'] LOL'TSE'T 000'008'€ 06£'E21'T LEL'TSS'] (35L'¢€) 96£'TTE $59'88C jumld [B07 JAATY O[RY
%l 6l S0£'L8T'T 561°5ET°T 005'TTSY SLLLSE'L S61'SETT (990'y) 8L6'8EE 816'FEE e [80]) [lpqduwe)
%1987 TSL'TIET SPTLBIT 000'008"y LIE'9SE'T SYT'L31'T (s6L'9L) £6'SHE LPT'69T SuIgIn ], UOHSNWIC)
/Al (z6T'eD) z6T'el E - TET'ET T6T'El - T6T'El 0j0g TLAN
%88'1€ 00L'CE 00€S1 000'3Y 0LE'T 0€6'TL 00€'S1 (5£8) LEY'E £01°¢ aWQIN L, PUM, TL
%ER 1Y £16'Cr8'T L30'9Z€'1 0000LI'E (6£8'951) 976'TEH' L30'9ZE'T (s1z'zen) 60£'8LE £60'95T s10w0) AU0Ig
%OTL 066'6v+'C 010061 000'0$9°Z (Lrs'1) L56'161 010'061 3L001¥ (zor'L31) 9L9'TLT OSIN
%91's 9EP'GLE $95°0EF 000018 pop'L [ord Gt ¥95'0E 09zl 0ZS'0L 08L'1L 51500 Ayondu)y
%TL'ST 9TY'PHT $T9H8 0S0'62E (zzo'zel) 9Y9'97T ¥T9'78 ©Ls'L) S0L°€E €192 dxo samed asuyoind apsajoum uON

2suadxd omod IsTrypang

%LELY (SPS'ZS0°61) SSH'E9SLI 000°1Z9'9€ (z8L'611) 9TT8RY'LT SSH'RIS'LT SIS'TL 9p9'L58'T OH'6T6'T SINUIAM [LI0,

%6E 1Y (roL'sze) 9€0'0€T 008°55S 969'LE 0rE'T61 9€0'0£T (L16'eT) $90°02 [E] sonuzaax Jugesadouou [Lpog,
10/AIGH 3 55€ & (969°01) 150°LL 153 - " - SI9556 §O 9[US U SSC/UILD
%1197 (7£9'852) 89€'16 000°0S€ PIZ'1Y £51°08 39¢'16 (59) T 9L1 Awgaul 1S3I3UL
W6 (g91's) LET'9S 00£'16 (65L'3) $68"%6 LEI'98 (Lis'sn) z5'81 oFs'l SRS INAUIIY
%ST'ST (1£8°08) G9I'LL 00039 GhL'TL [\ead 691'LL - # " AWOOUL [B1UDS O[04
%3TSL (g6v'1L) 800°5€ 008'9% 881'c 0zs'le 300'5€ 059'T SLE'L STy [0t [BIUIY

sanumIAa Sugriadouop]

%1675 (168'125'T) GOE°ESE'Y OTSLE'E (g9c°sy) LLITOG'T GOS'ESR'T LIE6T G6FS'GET 9L8'89T sanudads Sunesado 1aypo (BroL
%86'ST (909'1Z) P68 000'0% @1s) S06°81 ¥6€'8L (€19) STI'E 91§°T SNOAUT([IOSIN
%55°TS @pTvos' ) 8SL599°1 000°0LL'E (vag'ec) £7966L° 85L'599°1 @is'tn) 984°vZT 896'T1T w0out QSN
%000 (002) i 00T Ty i % (35) 3¢ = §199p puq 3o AoAcoay
%18°0%1 8Tyl 86 000°s€ po1'9g S11%EL sTer £6¥'T 190°S £58°L de1as 3o J[eg
%18°3T1 L9T1°0T L91°06 000°0L yEl'Ly £50°EY L91'06 0S¥'6€ SI8'L 89T 1 Suiqqof pu SIPUBYIIIRN
%lS 6 (z6T'08) 80L'6T 00009 #7554 LE6'9T 30L'67 (6¥r) 610's 1.5 SINQOSIP PR

sanuwaaM Fugesado s0Q

%LELY (068'p0Z°L1) 011'S8E'S1 000°069°T€ (Gor*6o1) GIT'F6S'ST O11'S8'ST 61495 $70'865°T LPFPSIT $I[S ~ sanuaAd Juyraado [Lro),
2,98'8¢ {09L'¥6) 0pT'09 000'$S1 zor'l 2€8°SY 0vE09 SSLY 866'L £5L°71 731 pava
%$8'6¥ (ge8'zi1) POT'TII 000°$2T S10°LL av1'se FOITIL 79T $69'91 L1£'61 Sunysy 10ang
%9ETS {Los'zy1) £60'LS1 000'00€ (£0z'8) 962591 £60°L51 $LO'T FEL'OL 608'11 Asoyne o1qng
YTT oY (668'%0¥'s) 101's¥9' 000°050°01 (zes'rie) $69°656' 101°5#9° (L3¥'s6) 06€'7LL T06'8L9 [eLsnpuy
%978k (90s'050'8) FOF'605'L 000°095°51 LOY'$¥T £60°19TL FOF605"L 9YLL 9EE'1TT'L L8671 [ERWWO)
%68'9F (236'365'€) 3 810'100°€ §  000°00k'9 $ BCIE1'99) §  GrIL90E §  8I0T100°E 600°99 § 5L8'998 $ 88T $ RuIpISTY

e = SONudAdL Buned

WPapng (dpquaoacyup]) oy jodpng EELETE TN AU X Jourg eIy EEIETE TN AR FOLIY ey
30 % SqurIoAN] NUP 0} AUIX PIpUILTY JUP 03 JVIX JUP 0} UL JUP 0} JUIX NUP 0} PUOy P 0} PUOTA TP 01 PUOTA]
uosLrEduIo)) IJTP 03 Jva 0} J9spng uostudmo ) JBa R 03 AUIX uoseduro) YRuojAl ok YIuoKy

LI0T 1€ HATWADTA QIANT QOrddd THL HOL
(QALAAYND TYALIY ANV LTOANd - SISNIIXT ANV STANIATYE 40 ITNATHIS
QNN DTHLDATE

(ueBiyorpy “ApnD) asaaua |, Jo A1) 313 Jo jtuf} Jusuod wo)) y)

YIMOL ANV LHIIT ALLD ASYTAVIL

79



{(65L'56) $  Ipii€ S 08t'ege s Wozs's) § 909K $  TpLLES s [ rr'er) §  LeS'SP $  0s1'sz s
lo/ATaH (000°5Z1) n 000°ST1 5 - n " = =
0 19262 IbL'LES 08+308 {oze's) 790°9%8 1PL'LES (Lpb'ez) L6S'SY 051°s2
YTL 9V LOS'IS0°61 £IL0EL'9T 0IS'TIS'SE a9r'in SLI'TF 9L £IL0EL°91 99T°56 6F0°G0S'T PLEF06'T
%0T 3 005°6VE T 005°SST 1 000°509'C 968201 509°TST'T 005°SST'1 [a¥Al 101261 052'60T
%8S'LY PLG'ES6 920998 000°0T8°1 {eL9°L) 669548 920998 “ 000521 000°SZ1
%6y LI18'9E £06'c§ 0TLOL vLs $TEEE £06'€E 61€ 9LLS v6y's
%T6 Y 006'20L 00T'5LS 0019421 {£00'€T) £0T'968 00T'€LS (os0's1) £95°0¥1 $ES'STL
%0E'6€ 9F665E pS0'S5T 000°568 {ore'y) 000'85T $S0'EET FIUTL SSI'ZL 8678
%OL'I §L6'86T $L5'79T 055°19¢ 7908 £14'95T §L5'T9T (089'01) $60°5S L1v'rr
%6L LS L9992 £Ev'861 001'5Ts S11'%1) IWS'TIT £51'861 (20'12) SPO'SY 12022
PATE L98PSTT §  ££9'901°T 3 005 19TY s M 1607561 § W6 §  ££9'901T s @ (+30't) § eplLTy §  es0eTy $
193pngq (Iqeroaryury) smay 1upng IIUAIAFIT AUIA J0LL] [emay U e ) Joug ey
Jooy, FqBIOAT ] DYTP 0 JLIX popuamy NUP 0} JUIN JUP OF JLIX P OF ABIX HUP ) YLUOTA] AP 03 [PUORY HLP 0} YPuoy
uosudiuo]) AL ¢} JLIX 0) Jaapng UOSLIEAUOD) VL 0F JUIX uostieduo) uoy 01 YIuoy

uonisod Jou w ATuLY)
Ul SISUG],
SIDJSURL] 310Jaq SLOOU]

sasuadxa (w10,
uonuedag
9% Ay
J0UBINSU]
530X IO
95UdXI UOHULSTHILIPY [FII0IS)
IAIIS Ay
SUUNOII JIWYISN)
UOISSTISUE.L,
uohRqLIsIQ

L10Z '1€ YIENEDAA qAANT qOTH3dd IHL 404
(@ILANYNAD TYALDY ANV LIDANE - SISNALXA ANV SAANIATH 40 ATACIBDS

QN4 DRLDATE

(ueBiyatA] ‘A1) 35494811, 30 1D 21 30 Juf) Juduedwo)) v)

YIMOd ANV LHIIT AL ASYTAVIL

80



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
(A Component Unit of the City of Traverse City, Michigan)
ELECTRIC FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments of City fee

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Customer deposits received
Rental income received
Reimbursements received
Net cash provided by noneapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments
Interest and dividends
Net cash used by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 18,377,834
(2,704,769)
(12,390,743)

(979,139)

2,303,183

1,463
52,177
86,137

139,776

(2,761,229)
355

(2,760,874)

(500,444)
91,368

(409,076)

(726,990)

5,464,241

b 4,737,251

81



£€90°0 S 190°0 $ 8S0SI0ZI'IT § 60'601°SE8'T § T09°69L°LLY [€1'9TT'0€ 1€oL
arqearpdde jou 21qeoijdde jou 00°089'0St 00°08L' 1L aqesrpdde jou 3[quordde Jou (3osew) s3500) Awede) VA
eIre €11°0 88'167°€1 8816T°€1 0SI'811 0SL'SIL IB[OS TL-N
0L00 0L0°0 81°00<'S1 19°201°€ YLS'BIT £ uIqmy, purp, TL-N
8110 811°0 08'980'92¢€"1 10'60'95T SITSIT1I £38'591'T siaui0)) Aauarg
£60°0 L60'0 6E'6IL'ILY 0TTSEVS SLI'SET'S L99'698 SeD [[ypue]
L92°0 FTL'O 1LLYTLST'T 0E°LY1°692 TPT'EST'S Y09 ILE UGN [, UORSNQUIOT)
0L0°0 960'0 1L'96L°258°L 1$°L59°88T 088'€££°9T STE'TTO'E ATy 3[1Pg
0500 0500 LLYBL'SET'T LY'LIGPEE 0E6'VLE VY 869'889'9 £# [1Pqdure)
0’0 LEOD £6'E05°68E°T 09'680°16T 00L°09%°09 000'TLE"L Requop) [ere[lg
6000 $20°0 1§'6LT'E6] 11'9L9'22C 8£8'97L1T [8F'€L0'G [Eoqng
arqeordde jou spqearddelou  (50'ZEE'EED) (L9°Z89'vT) a1qeardde jou a1qeondde jou UOQISSIWISURL]
a1qeorjdde jou ajqeorjdde jou 1Z°9¢8' 11 <0'008'1 ojqeordde jou s1qearjdde jou SULIDATOM
6100 L20°0 SESULYIF £L'858'SHT $8°9ZL1T 18¥'€LOG OSIN
Junodady OSIN
Nup 07 JLIA Yluow 3802 1502 ARup uom JIMOd AASYHIU
Y} 103 YARN g 203 gAY NEP 03 TEIX Apqauopy 03 264 A HMM
aad 3500 1ad 350D
*S[ENI2E A[IUOUI JO ISNEIIQ JUIWIJEFS IWOIUI 0} FIITE JOU OP SINUIATY 0N
FT0'08E S $ G8E°F88'L S 96T 0TL'GST TTET69°61 SI[ES (B0
1+60°0 SLG6L0 916T°0 9¢IT’0 PLGL'O qr1e0 E8'PS1 0L6'9 9£6°0ES SI¥'Te $1yT17 19005 pue pIe g
80000 LLLOQ S3L0°0 0900°0 T5L0°0 TI80°0 0TY' I8V 206°8L9 081°06T°19 00L'S9€'8 So[eg [eLsnpu]
02000 6501°0 6501°0 6000°0 S¥OL°0 FEO1'0 LLE'P9t'L 0697982 TLY'T0S'0L G10°EoY'L SIES [EIIAWMOT
Q02000 $ L5010 $ LLOT'O Z100°0 $ 0901°0 S TLOTQ $ 00E'6+6'T 3 LTS LIY 3 80LL8ELT 331°148'E SI[ES [ERUIPISY
IIUBLIBA Ep 03 Aep IIUTLITA Yjuow Jruout INUIAIL INUIAIL Rep uow SATVS
TP 03 JBIK 1634 a0 g 03 ACIZ Appuom 1894 JoLL g pLIC TR 1lg] P 01 ILIX Appuogy 03 263K A HA
SI[ESANUIAIY 52|€S/A0UIAIY

LI0T ‘T1€ YATWADAA AAANT COTIAd THL YOI
NOILVIAMOINI AMVINIWITIANS

(ueSiyarpA] ‘A1) 9549484 ], JO AND) 243 Jo Jtu) Juduodwo) y)

ANNA D™ELDATH

YIMOd ANV LHOITT ALLD HSYIAVIL

82



£9€°995°1 $ uomnsod Jou [el0], SEL*T09°T S]35SE [B10]
FLI'S61 PaloLsaIun) GYTILE'T $J9SSE JUILINI-UOU [B)0],
6YTILE'L s19sse [epiden ur pajsaauf

88F 791 10u *pajeraaidap Suiaq sjesse [eude)

[€5°¢E soouasqe pajesuadwo) 19L°8 ssardord u1 uoronKsuo))
SR Wad) Suo| $1955E JURLINI-UON
18'1E SQI[LQTI JULIND [E10], 98+'0€T $)9S5€ JUILIND [E10],

- juounusAod Arewrud o1 angg 118 sosuadxo predoig

SI8'pI SMNUIAII PIUWIEIU[] 9C6°S Aroyusaug

086°6 SONI[IRI] 19710 pue sesuadxd panIosy 981°1T S]QBAISISI SIUNCIDY

9H0°L $ s1qeied sjunoooy €E$'70T $ sjuapeaba yseo pue ysed
SINNIQUI] JUILIND 519SSE JUILIND)

NOLLISOJ LIN ANV SHLLITIEVI'T SLASSY
L10T "1 HAFWIDEA
NOILISOd LIN 40 INTWILYLS
QNI JTFIA

(ueBiyagA] “AND 9594841, Jo 11D 943 Jo J1uf] Juduodwo) v)

YIMOL ANV LHOI'T ALLD HSATAVIL

83



(LYT'SsT) $ €9€'99S'T & 9II'IFT S
= 16L°ELS'T 16L°€L5'T
(LvZ'sst) (8T¥'L) (s£9'791)
i0/A1a# {0007sZ1) - {000'sTL)
(L¥T0E) (8z¥'L) (s£9°LE)
0 {0L8°St) S06°L 006'€S
%00°6T (sLg) - 00S
%08 t1 (set'st) S06°L 00F'ES
TFTOL (cee'st) (sL5°16)
%S9t LI I€£'€81 SLEOTH
%1567 $0S'€L 96t 1L 000's¥1
%000 SLE'ST - SLE'SI
UET PE 0558 0s¥'y 000°¢T
%8595 £39'8 LISTL 000'0T
%SE'ET L9L ££T 000'1
%9T'LE 89¢5'1 7€6 00S'T
%00'ST STIT SLE 00S°1
%1608 TL9'S 8ZI'¥T 008'6T
10/AICH# I 14v] -
%ES 0% 908°¢ ¥65'T 00%'9
%b6'El 620°¢S ILS' 1Y 009°%6
%Lb'TE $9S" S 9€T'9T 008'08
0/AIAH (Z00'1S1) 866°L9T 00061E
10/AICH# = - -
%99'TS (zoo'1sD) $ 866'L91 $  00061E $
193png jo (31qeI0AEIUL]) ey REpng
25eIU2013 g IQEBI0AE] JEP 01 JBIX papuowy

1834 Jo pud ‘nouisod 19N
1224 jo Suuuidaq ‘uonisod 19N
uonisod j1au ur A5uey)

INO SIJPSUELI],

S13jSukd) 3.10Jaq JWodUY
$InuIA Sunesadouou [gj0],

JUIODUI SIUIU]
SJUAWASINQUIIY
sanuaAdl Junesadouon

dwodui Sunzesadg
sasuadxa Sunesado [el0]

uonerdardacy

233 1D

JIUY [OIYIA

JoueuUIRW pue sireday

JourInsuy

Juado[2A9p [BUOLSSII0I

[ENIOBIIUOD PUE [BUOISSIJOI

SoUBUSIUTEW PUE SuOnEIAdQ TIIM

SJUDWIOBNE 3]0g

sarddng

spysuaq 93uug

5393eM PUE SOLB[ES
sasuadxs JunvaadQ

sanu3aal Sunesado (10
Surqqol pue SuSIpUBYaISIA

S991A195 10] SeTIeyD
sonuaAdl Sunesadg

L10Z ‘1€ YHIINIDAA AIANT AOTY3Ad IHL 404
NOILISOd LIN NI STONVHD
QNY SESNIIXT ‘SEANTATY 10 INTWIALVLS

AN ITFIL

(ueSyaty ‘A1) 9SI9ARLL JO 431D 343 Jo nup) Juduod wo)) v)

YIMO4d ANV LHOI'T ALLD ISYIAVIL

84



